BOARD OF UNION COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

REGULAR MEETING
AGENDA
November 15, 2022
900 a.m. DOCUMENT #202200990
L. Call to order /722 04:56:55 PM
2. Pledge of Allegiance "1 oof 1
3. Approval of agenda and minutes BY Mary Lou Harkins
4. Hospital Report ‘
5. Discussion/Possible Action Items
i.  Canvass Election
ii.  Apollo Fight Presentation
iii.  Resolution 2023-11 Renewal Gallegos Wind Project Permit
iv.  Resolution 2023-12 Renewal PNE Wind Project Permit
V. Amended Resolution 2023-10 BAR Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention
Grant
vi,  Resolution 2023-13 BAR Opioid Settlement
vii.  Resolution 2023-14 BAR Rabbit Ear Fire Department Fees
viii.  Resolution 2023-15 BAR LDWI Grant
ix.  Resolution 2023-16 BAR LEPF
Xx.  Resolution 2023-17 BAR LATCF
xi,  CUCEDP LEDA Project Application
xii.  Resolution 2023-18 Acceptance of CUCEDP LEDA Project Application
xiii,  Resolution 2023-19 Acceptance of NMC Legislative Priorities
xiv.  Order to Vacate Plat - Unincorporated Sunnyside Subdivision
xv.  Subdivision Exemption- Jessie Shields
xvi,  Discussion Old Rabbit Ear Fire Department Building
xvii,  Conflict Waiver Attorney Services
xviii.  Update Signature Cards NMB&T and F&S Bank effective January 1, 2023
xix.  Met Tower Permit Applications
xx.  Road Crossing Permits
xxi.  Inventory Items Disposition - Road Department International Water Truck
xxii.  Approval of Bills '
xxiii.  Healthcare Assistance - Approval of Claims
xxiv.  County Travel Requests

10:00 a.m, Citizen’s Forum
Kelly Ricks-Des Moines Senior Center

NS

Road Superintendents Report

Fire Coordinator/Emergency Manager Report
County Manager Report

Elected Officials Reports

Executive Session- Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 10-15-1(H) 9 - Hospital Strategic and Long-Term
Business Plans

Adjourn

As of 11/7/2022

Next Meeting December 13, 2022@ 9:00



BOARD OF UNION COUNTY COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING

October 4, 2022
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
Chairman Justin K. Bennett Commissioner Clayton F. Kiesling
OTHERS PRESENT:
Clerk Brenda Green Manager Brandy Thompson Assessor Hollie Sandoval
Sheriff James Lobb Sheriff Sergeant Curtis Skaggs

Emergency Manager Kris Lawrence

GUESTS:

Melissa Prante — CFO, Union County General Hospital

Shawn Nethery — CCO, Union County General Hospital

Carr Vincent Red Miller Joe Reeser
Franke Aragon

At 8:58 a.m., Chairman Bennett called the meeting to order in the Commission Chambers located in the Union
County Administration Building. The pledge of allegiance was recited.

Commissioner Kiesling moved to suspend Roberts Rules of Order, due to the absence of Commissioner Hall.
Chairman Bennett stepped down as Chairman, and seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL Ave.

Motion carried.

Commissioner Kiesling moved to approve the agenda and the regular meeting minutes of September 13, 2022,

Commissioner Bennett seconded. There was no further discussion. Vote: ALL AYE. The minutes were signed.

HOSPITAL REPORT

Tammie Stump, CEQ, was unable to attend the meeting, Melissa Prante, CFO, reported on statistics for
September. Before the meeting, the “County Commissioner Monthly Hospital Report, Union County General
Hospital, Tammie Stump, CEOQ, October 4, 2022”, was distributed to the board. ltems covered included the
following (but not limited to the following): Provider Recruitment Update; Financial Assistance/Compliance
Update; Business Office/Revenue Cycle Update; Compliance; Radiology; Plant Services; Therapy Services;
Pharmacy; Union County/Des Moines Health Centers; IT; HVAC/Vestibule/Cryogenic Tank 3000
gallon/Grade Survey.

Shawn Nethery, CCO, reported on statistics for September. Before the meeting, the “County Commissioner
Monthly Hospital Report, Union County General Hospital, Shawn Nethery, CCO, October 3, 2022", was
distributed to the board. Items covered included the following (but not limited to the following): Social Work;
Home Health Care Report; Laboratory Services; Pharmacy; Clinical/Quality Updates.

1



Melissa Prante, CFO, reported on financials for August. Before the meeting, the “Clayton Health Systems, Inc.
Union County General Consolidated Executive Financial Summary, 2" Month FYE 2023, and the “Clayton
Health Systems October 3, 2022 MOR Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Period ending August 31,
2022”, was distributed to the board. ltems covered included the following (but not limited to the following):
Key Statistics; Statement of Revenue and Expenses — YTD; Balance Sheet.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS
APPROVAL OF WAIVER FOR HOSPITAL BOARD MEMBER ONE YEAR BREAK

Union County General Hospital’s by-laws currently require a termed-out board member to sit out for one year
before being able to serve again as a board member. The board has approved changing the by-laws to remove
that requirement. The change also has to be approved by the Board of County Commission.

Commissioner Kiesling moved to approve the removal of the one-year break requirement for termed-out
Hospital board members from the Hospital Board bylaws. Commissioner Bennett seconded. There was ho
further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

PHI RENEWAL
A proposed agreement to renew PHI Cares Memberships for Union County.

Commissioner Bennett moved to approVe the Union County, New Mexico Agreement for PH! Cares
Membership Benefits. Commissioner Kiesling seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE.
Motion carried.

PETITION TO VACATE PORTION OF PLAT — OWAISSA HEIMANN, CLINTON & OWIDA FRANZ
Petitioners Owaissa Heimann, and Clinton and Owida Franz, have requested the Board of County
Commissioners approve the vacation of streets and alleys within or abutting Blocks 38, 39, 41, and 42 of the
Sunnyside Addition to the Town of Clayton, which lies just outside of the city limits. This property is owned by
the petitioners, and is part of pastureland that presently exists.

Mgr. Thompson was instructed to proceed with preparing the order to vacate, and acquiring the necessary
documentation from the petitioners to pléce this as an action item for a future meeting.

RESOLUTION 2023-10 BAR LAW ENFORCEMENT RECRUITMENT GRANT
A proposed resolution to authorize General Fund (401) (DFA #11000) budget increase, to reflect receipt of Law
Enforcement Recruitment Grant funds by Union County.

Commissioner Kiesling moved to approve Resolution #2023-10, Authorization of General Fund (401) (DFA
#11000) Budget Increase. Commissioner Bennett seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE.
Resolution signed.




ARPA FUNDING DISCUSSION

Mgr. Thompson gave an overview of ARPA funds that have been received, and funds that will be received in
the future. She asked the Commission to consider possible uses for the funds, both immediate and long range.
This will be an ongoing discussion at future meetings.

TRANSPORTATION FUNDING AND PRIORITIES

Commissioner Kiesling and Mgr. Thompson gave an overview of a recent meeting with James Gallegos of
NMDOT, regarding needed repairs for state roads within the county, and possible funding sources for repairs
to county roads. It was suggested that the county pass a resolution prioritizing the state roads in need of
repair, to help with securing funding for these projects. This item will be revisited at future meetings.

At 10:08 a.m., the meeting recessed for a short break.
At 10:20 a.m., the meeting resumed.

CITIZEN’S FORUM

There was no one present for the Citizen’s Forum.

NMC LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES

Commissioner Bennett reported on his attendance of the recent NMC Board meeting where Legislative
Priorities were chosen for the 2023 Legislative Session. All items presented will be supported by NMC, with
major focus on HB2 Funding, a Public Safety Package, Courthouse Renovation Funding, and IPRA (Inspection of

Public Records) reform. Mgr. Thompson was asked to inform Senator Woods and Representative Chatfield of
the priorities chosen.

REGIONAL BEHAVIORAL HEALTH FACILITY

Mgr. Thompson gave an overview of a joint effort to establish a psychiatric hospital and mental health facility
in Clovis. The cities of Clovis, Tucumcari, and Portales, along with the counties of Roosevelt, Curry, Quay, and
De Baca, are participating in a feasibility study. In an effort to secure additional funding, other surrounding
counties have been contacted to participate in the project, including Union County. More information will be
forthcoming as this project progresses.

ROAD CROSSING PERMITS

Permit #479 submitted by Permitee ENMR Telephone Cooperative, for the purpose of allowing Permitee to lay
cable for the purpose of Fiber Optic Distribution Cable Installation across ROW of Mountain View Road,
located in Sec. 30, T26N, R36E.

Commissioner Bennett moved to approve Road Crossing Permit #479. Commissioner Kiesling seconded. There
was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.




INVENTORY ITEMS DISPOSITION — ROAD DEPARTMENT INTERNATIONAL WATER TRUCK

There were no items presented for disposition.

APPROVAL OF BILLS
Bills in the amount of $109,723.56 were presented for review.

Commissioner Kiesling moved to approve bills in the amount of $109,723.56, and to authorize payment of any
bills presented through the end of the month. Commissioner Bennett seconded. There was no further
discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

HEALTHCARE ASSISTANCE — APPROVAL OF CLAIMS

There were no claims presented for approval.

COUNTY TRAVEL REQUESTS

Mgr. Thompson will attend the NMCIA Board retreat in Cloudcroft, Cheryl Garcia will attend a Human
Resources retreat in Ruidoso, Emergency Mgr. Lawrence will be attending multiple training sessions in
multiple locations, and Commissioner Kiesling will be attending EPCOG and NERTPO meetings. All travel
approved.

COURTHOUSE UPDATE ,

Mgr. Thompson gave an overview of a recent meeting with Pam May, CEO of District Court, regarding moving
Magistrate Court to the Courthouse by the end of the year. Staff locations within the Courthouse will be
temporary, until renovations are complete. Mgr. Thompson will provide updates as this project progresses.

ROAD SUPERINTENDENTS REPORT
Road Superintendent Kear was unable to attend the meeting, Mgr. Thompson reported on his behalf. The

road project in progress in the north part of the county should be done by early December, and applications
are being accepted for the open position.

FIRE COORDINATOR/EMERGENCY MANAGER REPORT

Emergency Mgr. Lawrence reported on the following (but not limited to the following): Quarterly report will
be submitted soon; Overview of recent LEPC meeting; Recent meeting with CMS regarding active shooter
training; Recent meeting with OXY for first responders; Scheduled attendance of multiple training programs.
Due to the retirement of Fire Coordinator Jim O’Bryant, Mgr. Thompson reported on his behalf. Pump testing
has been completed at all fire stations, and applications are being accepted for the Fire Coordinator position.

COUNTY MANAGER REPORT

Mgr. Thompson reported on the following (but not limited to the following): Grant application for funding for
the Wildland Fire Coordinator has been completed; Applications are being accepted for the GIS position;
Auditors will be here October 17-18.



ELECTED OFFICIALS REPORTS

Sheriff Lobb reported on the following (but not limited to the following): Asked the Commission’s support for
HB35 and HB 68 in the upcoming Legislative Session; Thanked Mgr. Thompson and HR Cheryl Garcia for their
help in securing the Law Enforcement Recruitment Grant funding for the Sheriff’s Office.

Assessor Sandoval reported that the Tax roll will be transferred to the Treasurer next Tuesday, so they can
begin preparing the tax bills.

Clerk Green reported that Early voting in the Clerk’s Office will begin Tuesday, October 11™, and asked for
everyone’s patience during the election, as the office will be without one person.

Commiissioner Kiesling reported that he was contacted about the condition of the county owned park on Hwy
402 just south of Amistad, particularly about the trash. Mgr. Thompson will explore possible solutions and
report to the Commission.

Commissioner Bennett reported that Joy Esparsen accepted a three year contract to be the new Executive
Director of New Mexico Counties (NMC).

ADJOURN: At 11:27 a.m., Commissioner Kiesling moved to adjourn. Commissioner Bennett seconded. There
was no further discussion. Vote: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

Meeting Announcements: The next regular meeting will be held on Tuesday, November 15, 2022 at 9:00 a.m.
The next Joint Communication meeting will be held on Tuesday, December 13, 2022 at 10:00 a.m.

Board of Union County Commissioners
ATTEST - . .; Union County, New Mexico

SEAL

Justin K. Bennett - Chairman

Brenda L. Green — County Clerk Clayton F. Kiesling - Vice Chairman



Clayton Health Systems, Inc

Union County General Consolidated

KEY STATISTICS

3rd Month FYE 2023

Executive Financial Summary

Unaudited

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENS

09/30/22 09/30/22 YTo ¥Yro ¥ro

ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE
Total Admissions 10 18 34 52 (18)
Total Patient Days 52 83 114 253 (139)
Average Length of Stay Total 5.20 4.61 3.35 4.87 1.51
Total Emergency Room Visits 175 161 492 484 8
Qutpatient Visits (NOT CLINIC) 541 629 1,613 1,888 (275)
Total Surgeries 3 3 11 10 1
Total Gl Procedures 5 7 17 22 (5)

09/30/22 09/30/22 Y70 YT Y70
REPORTED IN THOUSANDS ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE
Revenue:
Gross Patient Revenues $1,452 $1,793 $4,182 $5,378 (1,196)
Deductions from Revenue (597) (784) (1,710) (2,357) 647
Net Patient Revenues 855 1,009 2,472 3,021 (549)
Other Revenue 264 295 791 885 (24)
Total Net Revenues 1,119 1,304 3,263 3,906 (643)
Expenses:
Salaries & Benefits 672 704 1,999 2,114 115
Professional Fees 31 a7 139 141 2
Purchased Services 134 113 354 338 (16)
Supply Expenses 84 128 332 384 52
Other Operating Expenses 281 232 782 696 (86)
Depreciation & Interest Expense 66 73 200 218 18
Total Expenses 1,268 1,297 3,806 3,891 85
OPERATING MARGIN (149) 7 (543) 15 (558)
NET MARGIN ($149) $7 (5543) $15 ($558)
EBIDA ($83) 580 ($343) $233 ($576)
Audited
Unaudited 09/30/22 09/30/21 06/30/21
ASSETS
Current Assets $3,232 $5,432 $5,976
Property, Plant & Equipment (Net) 9,969 10,480 10,626
Other Assets 652 1,028 925
Total Unrestricted Assets 13,853 16,9240 17,627
Assets Whose Use is Limited 2,108 1,649 1,530
Total Assets 515,961 518,589 $19,057
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities $1,839 $3,192 $3,887
Debt Borrowings, net of current 2,388 2,483 2,503
Total Liabilities 4,227 5,675 6,390
Net Position 11,734 12,914 12,667
Total Liabilities and Net Position $15,961 $18,589 $19,057




CLAYTON HEALTH SYSTEMS
OCTOBER 26, 2022 MOR
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Period Ending September 30, 2022

INCOME STATEMENT:

O NSO ON=S

Gross patient revenue for September is $1.45M; $341k < budget; $530k < PY.
Total net patient revenue for the month, after CA was $855k.

Total other revenue for September is $180k.

County tax subsidy revenue is estimated at $84k.

Total MTD net operating revenue is $1.1M; $185k< budget; $172k < PY.
Operating expenses for September are $1.3M; $29k < budget; $50k > PY.
Operating loss of $149k and EBIDA loss of $83k.

YTD, we have an operating loss of $543k and EBIDA loss of $343k.

YTD Budget to Actual Variances is as follows:

Gross Patient Revenue is under budget by $1.2M.

Total Net Operating Revenues are under our YTD budget by $549k.

Total Operating Expenses are under YTD budget by $85k.

Salary/Benefits are under budget YTD by $115k.

Professional fees/Purchased Services are over budget by $14k.

Pharmacy, Medical, Other Supplies are under budget by $52k.

Other operating expenses (postage, subscriptions, dues, licenses, taxes,
maintenance, lease, utilities, travel, and education) are over budget by $86k. Includes
physician recruiting, audit invoices and 340B management fees.

Depreciation and Interest are under budget by $18k.

BALANCE SHEET:

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

UCGH had cash and cash equivalents of $986k.
September had CD balances total $928k.

AR Mill Levy and GRT balance $222k.

Net Patient AR is $1.86M.

AP Manual accruals is $59k.

Estimated 3" party settiements $186k for MAAP
CR for 2021 has an estimate of $9k receivable.
CR for 2022 has an estimated receivable of $44k
September Days Cash on Hand is 25 days.



Proposal for Partnership between

Q%Umon ounty

~APOLLG,

MedFlight

1|Page



Contents
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY - OUR APPROACH TO IMPROVING PERFORMANCE .. Error! Bookmark not defined.

PO oS A S I BN o o b B R s s T s Error! Bookmark not defined.
Overview af Apallo MedBlght s i arsimmmemmimai e s e i s e B i i T m i 5
Ll @ P ST T ANTY v saishitionssivacom s v s S o S R BV B R o s )
N T s B 0 00 R B Y s e i A e S 11
AT DV VL TC B st s S A R B S A A MR T O YRGS 12

Membership Proposal 8 ABFERMIEIIE ..iiiirisimmiumminnmsuinssimnmsmsresssssissinssssssssmesnstsesais i (ranssssr i es 12

R B B LB RIS s vvis v a8 o 03t P L B 0 S i RS B A R 13

2|Page



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY - OUR APPROACH TO
IMPROVING PERFORMANCE

Comprehensive Membership Program with competitive pricing

Business and Operations leadership based in the response region

Locally owned and headquartered in Amarillo with responsive executive
team

Apollo branded aircraft based at Dalhart Municipal Airport and supported
by a regional spare — Bell 407

Right people in the right positions—The highest cultural values, safety,
quality, and commitment to service

Apollo is an In-Network provider with BCBS Texas, the area’s largest
insurer

Focused on customer service and community involvement

Float aviation and clinical staff for better in service rates

Daily reporting and review key operational performance indicators and
safety

Transparency on billing practices and payor relations

3|Page



Apollo

Apollo is a CAMTS accredited organization that has been in the air medical industry since 2011 and is led
by recognized industry veterans who utilize best practices in its operations. It is financially sound, has
established a strong safety culture, and has air medical operations in Nebraska, North Carolina, Oklahoma,
South Dakota, and Texas. We have the focus and capacity for this partnership to succeed long-term.
Apollo’s focus on local leadership, agility, and unique value propositions are its greatest values—this base
will have the leadership team’s full attention on the partnership and comitment to continuous
performance improvement.

Apollo currently operates two King Air 90’s and 2 Bell 407’s that service the Texas and Oklahoma
Panhandles. These aircraft are maintained by the best aircraft mechanics around. Operating from these
two platforms provides access to hospitals throughout the entire region—our rotor wing assets assist with
more local flights and fixed-wing aircraft that can transport patients’ further distances.

Our most significant advantage over our competitors is our commitment to customer service. We pride
ourselves on being a company that is agile and responsive to the needs of our customers and hospital
partners. While we are a growing company, we hold to our core values of customer service of a local
company.

We also help our local emergency responder services and hospitals by providing industry-leading training
to the region that might not otherwise be available. This training better prepares our first responders to
help patients in their times of need.

Proposal
Apollo proposes to provide membership services to all citizens in Union county for $15.00 per household.

Apollo has a rotor wing base in Dalhart to provide quicker access to Apollo aircraft in eastern New Mexico.
We intend to support this base with our regional locations in Amarillo, Guymon, and Borger if multiple
patients need to be transported. This base would be staffed 24-7 and would be a great asset to all
members of your communities.

4|Page



Overview of Apollo MedFlight

Apollo’s flexibility to create service models tailored to the specific needs of its healthcare provider and
community constituents, combined with the delivery of superior service, has enabled the company to
form strong relationships and successful operations across the United States. Apollo has partnerships and
bases operating in hybrid/alternative (ADM), traditional/hospital-based services (HBS), and community-
based services (CBS) models.

Apollo was founded in 2010 by CEO Lehmer Dunn and two investors who have been Mr. Dunn'’s partners
in his previously successful companies. They have a strong track record of establishing and building
service-oriented businesses focused on performance, strong partnerships, strategic growth, and
prioritizing consumers and businesses in rural communities.

Apollo has significant value-added services and strengths that differentiate it from other industry
providers, including the following:

e Focus on key local leadership roles in the market that interact daily with customers and partners

e The operational experience and capabilities of the large air medical providers but the customer
service, focus and feel of a small company; intense focus on in-service rates based on backup
aircraft, supporting personnel and equipment

e Astrong safety culture and highly positive relationship with the FAA and regulatory authorities

e Progressive culture focused on its safety management system (SMS) with evolving safety
programs like Baldwin SMS, FDM and the FOQA initiative

e Commitment to best practices in clinical quality and patient safety—Apollo’s operations are
CAMTS accredited (www.camts.org)

e Transparency on billing practices and payor relations with a focus on patient advocacy and
customer service

e In a highly consolidated industry, Apollo has minimal competitive conflicts—allowing an
unmatched ability to focus on priority partners

Current Operations

Apollo operates its own part 135 certificate with fifteen rotor-wing and five fixed-wing aircraft in our fleet.
The aircraft we currently operate include the Bell 429, EC 135, EC 145, Bell 407, King Air 90, and Pilatus PC
12. Headquartered in Amarillo, Apollo has operational bases in Nebraska, North Carolina, Oklahoma,
South Dakota, Texas, and Wisconsin; Apollo will be expanding into other states in 2022.

Apollo’s business is the transport of medical patients, principally on an emergent basis, from rural/remote
locations to urban or higher-level treatment-appropriate hospitals. Apollo has been successful in

S5|Page



competing at the highest levels in the industry, utilizing multiple contractual business models while
providing safe operations, high quality performance and attentive customer service. Apollo utilizes
industry best practices and achieved accreditation by the Commission on Accreditation of Medical
Transport Systems (camts.org) in January 2016. Additionally, Apollo has brought in industry leading
organizations to improve its processes.

Our operations are partnered with key community and hospital relationships including but not limited to
the following:

1. Dalhart Hartley County Hospital District-Dalhart, Tx

2. BSA Health System—Amarillo, TX -

3. Memorial Hospital of Texas : .
County—Guymon, OK

4, Golden Plains Community
Hospital—Borger, TX

5. Novant New Hanover Regional
Medical Center—Wilmington, NC

6. CHI Good Samaritan Hospital—
Kearney, NE

7. Milwaukee Regional Medical
Center—Milwaukee, WI

8. Oglala Lakota Nation—Pine Ridge, SD

Hospital and community relationships are key to the long-term success of the operation. In support of our
partners, we have consistently focused efforts on response times, ongoing clinical training for the
community first responders and hospital personnel, regular chart reviews and being embedded in the
community.

Additionally, when a patient needs to be transported, it is often time consuming and challenging for
hospital personnel to locate transport. We offer a one call number where if we are not available to provide
the transport, we will work to send the next closest appropriate transport team and aircraft. We strive for
excellence in communication and coordination so the hospital personnel can focus on their patients.

Apollo prioritizes safety in operations and the quality of its patient care. We are enrolled in the Safety
Management Systems Voluntary Program (SMSVP)—a voluntary process in which we conform to higher
standards established by the FAA for organizations like ours to initiate safety best practices and evolve for
continuous improvement. Culture and communication are key to advancing safety; we invite the
participation of our partners in helping us to continuously improve our safety program.

Apollo leadership is active in its communities and the air medical industry. Apollo is a member of the
Association of Air Medical Services (AAMS), the Texas Association of Air Medical Services (TAAMS) and
the Air Medical Physician’s Association (AMPA); Apollo employees include the Chairman of the MedEvac
Foundation International, members of Air Surface Transport Nurses Association (ASTNA) and the
International Association of Flight and Critical Care Paramedics (IAFCCP). Apollo’s Communications
Specialists are International Association of Medical Transport Communication Specialists (IAMTCS)
certified.

6|Page



Leadership Team

Apollo’s people are its most valuable resource. The strength and depth of the Apollo team, combined with
the firm’s culture, are the driving factors in the company’s success. To compete effectively for
opportunities in the air medical transport industry, Apollo has recruited personnel to its leadership team
with compelling operations and service backgrounds.

Lehmer Dunn, Chief Executive Officer, is a licensed pilot and
aviation enthusiast with 26 years of experience in leading the
growth of entrepreneurial service organizations, His background
and education are in finance, but his greatest skill is bringing
together the right individuals to form leadership teams and build
successful companies. At Apollo, he emphasizes his vision of an
intense focus on safety, the right personnel, quality patient care,
and customer service. He was an owner and senior leader at an
agriculture company with annual revenues of over $400 million, and
he founded and served as CEO of a telecom company growing its
annual revenues to over $30 million. Lehmer’s success is the
product of his enthusiasm for customer service.

Lee McCammon, Chief Operating Officer, is a versatile and proven
leader in the air medical industry. Lee brings more than 20 years of
experience driving superior operations and overall performance to
Apollo. As Chief Operating Officer, Lee plays an instrumental role in
providing leadership and oversite to the organization’s operational
initiatives and facilities management. Lee has extensive experience
in healthcare and the air medical industry, including previous roles
with Life Link Ill, Air Methods, LifeMed of Alaska, OmniFlight, PHI,
and Rocky Mountain Helicopters. Lee received his Bachelor of
Science from Purdue University and his MBA from Northeastern
University. He has served as a Board Member for the International
Association of Flight Paramedics and Commission on Accreditation
of Medical Transport Systems.

7|Page



Jonathan Collier, Chief Strategy Officer, has 20 years of senior and
executive leadership roles in the air medical industry with Air
Methods, PHI, Summit Air Ambulance and Rocky Mountain
Helicopters. As Senior Vice President of Operations at Air Methods,
he had responsibility for half the US with 150+ base locations,
$365M in revenue, and 1,600 employees. He is a former board
member for the Association of Air Medical Services (AAMS). At PHI,
he and the business development team grew PHI Air Medical by 50
bases in five years. He has worked with healthcare systems and
hospitals across the United States in establishing transport, building
referral patterns, preventing patient leakage to other systems, and
improving communications. Since joining Apollo, he has been
instrumental in establishing partnerships with legacy programs.

Brandon Leasure, Executive Vice President of Business
Development, has served in the air and ground medical transport
industry over his last 18 years beginning as a critical care air
transport paramedic. His diverse background in field operations,
clinical care delivery, education, leadership, and business
development has been instrumental for the growth of Apollo
MedFlight, He currently serves on the Government Relations
Committee of the Association of Air Medical Services (AAMS), the
Air Medical & Specialty Care Transport Committee of the Texas
Governor's EMS & Trauma Advisory Council (GETAC), is an
executive board member on the Regional Advisory Council for
Texas Trauma Service Area-A and the Oklahoma Regional Trauma
Advisory Board as well as active member of the Texas Association
of Air Medical Services.

8|Page



David Miller, Director of Operations, brings his experience to
Apollo as a licensed pilot flying the BH407, EC135, EC145 and
BK117 along with being Single Pilot IFR qualified. He began serving
on the board of directors for the National EMS Pilots Association
(NEMSPA) as the Treasurer in 2021, Along with his 6 years of HAA
service, he has served in regional and program aviation
management roles and is passionate about standardization and
safety in the industry. David brings a unique perspective to the
HAA industry as he is also a licensed registered pharmacist and has
owned a medical services company. David has completed the
Medical Transport Leadership Institute (MTLI) and holds the
Certified Medical Transport Executive (CMTE) certification along
with his helicopter and instrument instructor ratings. He is
currently completing his MBA at Embry-Riddle Aeronautical
University.

Nick Kemp, Director of Maintenance, has a 20-year history of
successfully supporting multiple site maintenance operations
throughout the U.S. Since 2016, Nick has earned a progressive
career path at Apollo leading to his current role as DOM. In
addition to serving as DOM, he also serves as an active leader the
Apollo Safety Committee. Nick maintains effective
communications with FAA regulatory leaders, other department
team members, and our customers,

9|Page



Art Connolly, Chief Pilot, has 16 years in operational and aviation
leadership roles. He has been a licensed commercial helicopter
pilot since 2005 and has served in the air medical industry for
twelve years. He acquired his airline transport pilot (ATP)
certification in 2019. He joined Apollo in 2018 as a regional pilot
leader in partnership with a key hospital with three bases of
operation; soon after beginning his role at Apollo, he accepted a
leadership role as the Aviation Services Manager for the region
where he directly influenced culture, safety, and training while
also implementing instrument flight rules (IFR) operations in the
region. He has primarily flown Airbus Helicopter models in his
career, and he is currently a check airman on the EC 135 and EC
145 for hoth visual flight rules (VFR) and IFR operations. His
leadership style emphasizes the importance of communication,
empowering individuals through training and appropriate
resources, and driving positive and safe company culture.

Miles Dunagan, Director of Safety, is an experienced and
recognized safety leader in the air medical industry. Miles brings
over 10,000 total hours and 25 years’ experience as a professional
aviator to his safety leadership role.Since 2006 his focus and
commitment has remained with air medical industry. He currently
serves as the President of the National EMS Pilots Association, as a
member for the Association of Air Medical

Services Safety Council, and as an Aviation Faculty Liaison for the
Critical Care Transport Academy. Miles is an excellent motivational
speaker to the industry, serves as an advisor to the Helicopter
Association

International and contributor to the Air Medical Journal
publications.

10|Page



Service Area

~APOLLG,

MedFlight

@ Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) I “
@® Traditional Model ‘.r’
Community Base (CBS) ’
AIRCRAFT OPERATED @ - \’

EC145
EC135

H145

| o8-
BKN7
@ Bell Helicopter
Bell 429
Bell 407

@ Beechcraft King Air
KA 20

& Pilatus Aircraft
PC-12NG

11| Page



Appendices

Membership Proposal & Agreement

Customer: Union County

Contact:

Covered citizens: Every citizen in Union County

Membership Type: 1-Year Group Membership

Price: 515 per household

Payment Terms: Within 30 days of receipt of invoice

Enrollment Date: TBD

Scope of Work: Apollo will provide education to citizens on membership benefits, and welcome packets to each
household and will provide ongoing customer service support for members including new employees that are hired
during the membership term.

Covered Employees: Membership coverage is for each enrolled household,

APOLLO MEDFLIGHT, LLC MEMBERSHIP TERMS & CONDITIONS
In consideration of the payment by the Member of the membership fee, Apollo MedFlight LLC (“Apollo”) agrees to
provide the following benefits, subject to the terms and conditions specified herein:

1. “Members” shall include the individual who signed the Application (“Primary Member”) and all household members
listed in the Application, so long as such individuals reside at the same address as the Primary Member. However,
under state law, Medicaid beneficiaries are not eligible for membership. The applicant(s) represent that they are
not Medicaid beneficiaries.

2. The membership fee constitutes prepayment by the Member of all deductible, copayment and other charges which
are not paid by the Member’s health insurance or other third party sources such as a homeowners or automobile
policy (collectively, “Insurance”) for Covered Transports, as defined herein. Apollo shall accept the amounts paid
by the Member's Insurance as payment in full for such transports. Subject to the foregoing, the Member is finan-
cially responsible for all costs of air ambulance services, up to the amount that would be paid by insurance for a
medically necessary transport.

3. “Covered Transports” include only medically necessary air ambulance services provided by Apollo to the closest
appropriate hospital. Air ambulance transports which are determined by the Member's primary Insurance not to
be medically necessary are not Covered Transports. The Member is responsible for all Apollo charges for air
medical services that are not Covered Transports,

4. Membership only covers transports provided by Apollo. Transports provided by other air medical providers or by
ground providers are not covered. Apollo may not be available when requested due to factors beyond Apollo’s
control. For example, Apollo’s aircraft may be occupied providing transports to other patients, or Apollo may be
unable to respond due to weather conditions, maintenance requirements, governmental market restrictions or
other factors. Further, Apollo does not operate in all areas.

9. As a condition of receiving membership benefits, the Member assigns and transfers to Apollo all rights and benefits
that the Member has under any and all Insurance, including but not limited to auto or homeowner’s insurance
policies. The Member authorizes payment of all such benefits for air ambulance services to Apollo. In the event
payment is made to the Member or any other party on the Member’s behalf, the Member agrees to remit all
such amounts promptly to Apollo. Apollo is not an insurance company and the Membership is not an insurance
policy.

6. Membership shall become effective the day Apollo receives a complete application with full payment.
Memberships are nonrefundable and nontransferable. The Member agrees to inform Apollo within ten (10) days
of any change in the Member’s health insurance status (e.g., loss of coverage) or any change in the household
Members covered by this membership.

12| Page



Reference Letters

To whom it may concern,

Apollo is an excellent asset to our area. They are very proactive to meet any needs in their service

area, from patient care to education and so much more. If there is a need and they can assist, they can
be counted on to do what they can to help.

As EMS director and a paramedic in Spearman, TX | can personally attest to their desire to exceed the
standard in what they do. From witnessing patient care quality on the ground and in the hospital before
flights, to communicating with them to get an education class set up, their professionalism goes above
and beyond! | can not recommend them enough. This is a company that takes their mission seriously
with quality patient care and customer service. If you have any specific questions or need more
information please do not hesitate to contact me at the information below!

3
Timberly Lomeli, NRP Hansford
County Hospital
EMS Director/Paramedic

Office: (806) 644-0911

Email: timberlylomeli@hchd.net

13|Page



APOLLO Apollo S A

MedFlight Q©
When Seconds Count, Trust Apollo DISPATCH
Dalhart, Texas (866) 443-5566

FLIGHT TIMES IN MINUTES

~ COLORADO

®
Johnson
City

Springfield
pring &
Trinidad, : Walsh
Branson L ~ ®Campo

Hugoto
Elkhart

Raton ® : | 3
: Hooker
Des @ Boise DHEL®

VR Moines City ® .
Maxwel o y rarhor ® Guymon
b ®

Apringer

W
® Stratfo rd Perryton

Dalhart

. . . @@ .Céctus Spearman Cana, n

Hartley. pufies BOrgEr

®

" Logan st |
gar Pampa |

. "
Tucumca.rl "993 Améﬁlllo Panhandle

®
San Jon ®
Canyon

®
Hereford
_ . Tulia
Clous Dimmitt

24-Hour Rapid Response ® When Seconds Count ¢ ApolloMedFlightDalhart.com



Clearway Energy Group
100 California St, Suite 400
San Francisco, CA 94111

@ dearway

October 31, 2022

Union County Commission
200 Court Street
Clayton, NM 88415

Regarding: Gallegos Wind Farm Project - "Don Carlos”

Dear Union County Commissioners,

On behalf of Gallegos Wind Farm, LLC and its affiliates (the “Company”), thank you for
Union County's continued support of the Company’s Don Carlos wind project located in
southwestern Union County (the “Project”). The Company formally requests Union
County's consideration of an extension to Resolution Number 106-34, signed on March
14, 2018, which is set to expire on December 31, 2022. We respectfully request an
extension of the Resolution for an additional four-year period.

Per the original Resolution, Gallegos Wind Farm plans to construct a phase of the project
along a portion of Don Carlos Ridge ("Don Carlos”), consisting of no more than 180 MW
of wind turbines and infrastructure. Lucky Corridor, LLC also wants to construct the Mora
Line and a portion of the wind project’s gen-tie in western Union County, which is
planned as a transmission line, to carry the electricity toward an interconnection point
with Public Service Company of New Mexico, at a point near Las Vegas, New Mexico.

Don Carlos is an advanced-stage renewable energy facility being actively marketed to
offtakers. The attached maps show the project boundary and an updated turbine layout
using Vestas 4.5 MW 150m rotor turbines.

As described in the original Resolution, the Project is contingent upon Lucky Corridor
completing its transmission development of the Mora Line. Since the original Resolution
was passed, Lucky Corridor has achieved the following development milestones:

e Lucky Corridor has finalized the route for the transmission line, and recently
finalized appraisals and surveys despite challenges from COVID-19 and the Las
Vegas fire.

e Most of the right-of-way for the Mora Transmission Line has been procured and
the remaining site control negotiations are underway.

clearwayenergygroup.com



e In January 2022, Lucky Corridor signed a partnership agreement with the New
Mexico Renewable Energy Transmission Authority.

e Lucky Corridor has conditional approval of the Open Access Transmission Tariff,
which was filed with FERC in 2022.

We are excited about the future of this Project and, if desired by the Commission, we

welcome the opportunity to give a brief update during your next Commission meeting
on November 15, 2022.

Again, we appreciate your continued support and thank you for your consideration in
granting this extension.

Sincerely,
Gallegos Wind Farm, LLC

oy = [ty

Name: Jéhn Woody v
Vice President




RESOLUTION NO. #2023-11
UNION COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

WHEREAS, Gallegos Wind Farm, LLC (“Gallegos™) wants to construct a phase of the
Gallegos Wind Farm in western Union County, along a portion of the Don Carlos Ridge,
to consist of no more than 180 MW of wind turbines and infrastructure; and Lucky
Corridor, LLC (“Lucky”) wants to also construct the Mora Line and a portion of the wind
project’s gen-tie in western Union County, which is planned as a 115kV line, to carry the
electricity toward an interconnection point with Public Service Company of New Mexico
at a point near Las Vegas, New Mexico;

WHEREAS, Gallegos has advised the County that it is waiting for Lucky Corridor, LLC
to complete transmission development and construction of its Mora Line project, in
Union, Colfax, Mora and San Miguel Counties and,

WHEREAS, Gallegos has filed an Application for Siting Approval, substantially in
compliance with Union County Ordinance #40, to proceed with construction within
unincorporated areas of Union County, such Application recognizing that this Resolution
in no way waives the County’s right to request and receive further perfection of the
Application or further compliance with County ordinances; and

WHEREAS, Lucky Corridor, LLC has filed an Application for a Building Permit to
proceed with construction of the Mora Line within unincorporated areas of Union
County, such Application recognizing that this Resolution in no way waives the County’s
right to request and receive further perfection of the Application or further compliance
with County ordinances; and

WHEREAS, Gallegos Wind Farm, LLCI and Lucky Corridor, LLC, within their
applications, have requested permission to use heavy machinery to make ground
disturbances, beginning immediately, on ground owned or controlled by Applicants.

NOW THEREFORE be it RESOLVED, that by this Resolution the Union County
Commissioners hereby permit, approve and allow the construction of the Phase of the
Gallegos Wind Farm on the map attached hereto as Exhibit A, subject to compliance by
Gallegos with all existing local, state and federal ordinances, regulations and statutes; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that by this Resolution the Union County
Commissioners hereby permit, approve and allow the construction of the portions of the
Mora Line transmission project and the wind farm gen-tie that are within Union County
as shown on the map attached hereto as Exhibit A, subject to compliance by Lucky
Corridor, LLC with all existing local, state and federal ordinances, regulations and
statutes; and



FURTHER RESOLVED, Union County hereby extends its full support to the Gallegos
Wind Farm and the Mora Line transmission project owned by Lucky Corridor, LLC, to
the extent permitted by applicable law; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, this Resolution shall continue in full force and effect, unless
modified or extended by act of the Union County Commission, until December 31, 2025.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 15TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2022.

Justin K. Bennett, Chairman

Clayton Kiesling, Commissioner

Frankie Aragon, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Brenda Green, County Clerk



Regional Map of the Gallegos Wind Farm




Don Carlos Wind Project - Prospective Turbine Layout
180 MW, Vestas V150

253 fi

Dead End Re

Don Carlos Substation

®

SiteAccess

il fia) i

Deac Enc Ra




PHE

pure new energy

November 7, 2022

Union County Manager
Brandy Thompson

200 Court Street
Clayton, NM 88415

Re: Gladstone New Energy Union County Sitting Permit Extension
Dear Ms. Thompson

Gladstone New Energy, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of PNE USA, Inc., is requesting a three-year extension
of the Union County Sitting Permit dated November 10, 2020.

The Project is comprised of approximately 17,000 acres located in Union, Colfax, and Harding Counties,
roughly 30 miles east of Springer, New Mexico. The Project will have a nameplate capacity of approximately
78 megawatts and consists of up to 30 wind turbine generators. Additional facilities associated with the
Project include a collection substation, access roads, metecrological evaluation towners, underground
electrical collection systems and cabling, and a short above ground electric transmission line connecting to
Tri State’s high-voltage transmission system or the Mora Transmission Line development.

Since the initial approval of the permitting application in November of 2020 there have been no changes to
the location of the project infrastructure, The maps submitted with the original application remain accurate.
The need for the extension is related to delay and congestion issues with Tri State’s electrical transmission
system.

We look forward to your review of this letter and our meeting with the Union County Board of

Commissioners in November. If you have any questions regarding this letter or the status of the Project,
please contact by emall at Kenny.wheeler@pne-ag.com or by phone at (405) 443-7531.

Best Regards,

i

Kenny Wheeler
Senior Development Manager
PNE USA, Inc.

Attachment: Gladstone New Energy Summary Map

PNE USA, Inc. | 150 Norlh Michlgan Avenuae, Sulle 1600 | Chicago, IL 60601 | www.pne-usa.com



UNION COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-12

PERMIT FOR GLADSTONE NEW ENERGY, LLC TO BEGIN CONSTRUCTION OF
FIRST PHASE OF THE GLADSTONE NEW ENERGY WIND FARM

WHEREAS, Gladstone New Energy, LLC (“Gladstone”) wants to construct the
Gladstone New Energy Wind Farm in Union County, to consist of wind
turbines and infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, Gladstone has filed an Application for Siting Approval, substantially in
compliance with Union County Ordinance #40, to proceed with
construction within unincorporated areas of Union County, such
Application recognizing that this Resolution in no way waives the
County’s right to request and received further perfection of the
Application or further compliance with County ordinances; and

WHEREAS, Gladstone, within its Application, has requested permission to use heavy
machinery to make a ground disturbance, that is, to build roads,
beginning immediately.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY OF UNION that by this
Resolution the Board of Commissioners hereby permit, approve and allow
the construction of the Gladstone New Energy, LLC Wind Farm, subject to
compliance by Gladstone with all existing local, state and federal
ordinances, regulations and statutes; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, Union County hereby extends its support to the Gladstone
New Energy LLC,, to the extent permitted by applicable law; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, this resolution shall continue in full force and effect, unless
modified or extended by act of the Union County Commission, until
December 31, 2025.

Continued on page #2




Resolution 2023-12
Gladstone New Energy Wind Farm
November 15, 2022

DONE AND RESOLVED this 15th day of November, 2022.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF UNION COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

Justin Bennett, Chairman
ATTEST:

Brenda Green, County Clerk Clayton Kiesling, Member

Frankie Aragon, Member



UNION COUNTY
Amended Resolution No. 2023-10

Authorization of Law Enforcement Fund (605) (DFA # 21200) budget increase

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Union County meeting in regular session on
November 15, 2022 did propose to make budget adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union does, through Amended Budget Resolution 2023-10 ask that
authorization for the budgetary adjustments be granted, as summarized in the attachment; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union wishes to increase revenue and expenditures by one hundred
and fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) in Fund 605 for the increase of the Law Enforcement
Recruitment Grant awarded to Union County. Allowable expenses for this grant include
expenditures for salary and benefits related to recruitment and retention of law enforcement
officers.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Union County does
hereby approve the aforementioned budget adjustments and respectfully requests the
authorization for the budgetary adjustments and revisions be granted by the Local Government
Division of the Department of Finance and Administration of the State of New Mexico.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and official seal this 15t day of
November, 2022.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - UNION COUNTY

Justin Bennett, Chairman
ATTEST:

Clayton Kiesling, Member

Brenda Green, County Clerk

Frankie Aragon, Member



= LGBMS &

Bl Manage Line Items for Increase for Law Enforcement Recruitment Grant

+ Adjustment successfully updated.
# > Budgets » Adjustments > Items / Files

4 Add 4 Transfer X Import [l Delete X Export [HBAR + Submit to Analyst

l sy Ishowi 100 v entries Search:

= Origingl PreAdjusted

- - Adjusteds s My e ‘ ‘
(| Fund Department ~ Object Code g doo " bydoet Adjustmerft Budget | Status :Cammentsiunm?d‘ Actions
SR e 47120 State - | | \ |
0001 No Law \ i
(= f‘zi:;[:'i:x::: Departmisiit | Enfarcamane | 000 | 000 ‘ 150,000.00 = 150,000.00 ‘ entity | 0 1 L.
opriation ‘
™ | | Wprpreion | | |
21200LaW o0 51020 Salarles ‘ ' =
[]  Enforcement Enf - Full-Time 0.00 0.00 106,270,00 | 106,270.00 entity 0O 0 |
Reeil T nforcement | oo Ak
6L 94 o ‘ i
21200 Law | ‘
]  Enforcement gom Law SOWFICA- | nn | g0 795600 | 795600 | entity | O 0
Renylbignt nforcement  Regular | | Actions
605 94 2064 | |
|
21200 Law
3001 Law 52020 | ~
t E:Z?Lclfr:.n:rﬂt Enforcement = Retirement Ueg | kg 33174.00 1 3317400 | entity O 0 ‘ o
605 94 2063 |
21200 Law |
3001 Law 52021 Retiree L
B Enefcr):lclte;n:;t Erfoyearait | Hashth care 0.00 | 0.00 | 2,600.00 2,600,00 | entity 0 0 P
P 94 2061 | .

\
__|
Showing 1 to 5 of 5 entries < Previous l 1 ] Next »



UNION COUNTY
Resolution No. 2023-13

Authorization of Local Government Abatement Fund (606) (DFA # 27000) budget increase

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Union County meeting in regular session on
November 15, 2022 did propose to make budget adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union does, through Budget Resolution 2023-13 ask that authorization
for the budgetary adjustments be granted, as summarized in the attachment; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union wishes to increase revenue and expenditures by twenty-one
thousand one hundred and twenty-eight dollars ($21,128.00) in Fund 606 for the increase of opioid
settlement funds awarded to Union County and allowable contractual expenditures.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Union County does
hereby approve the aforementioned budget adjustments and respectfully requests the
authorization for the budgetary adjustments and revisions be granted by the Local Government
Division of the Department of Finance and Administration of the State of New Mexico.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, we have hereunto set our hands and official seal this 15t day of
November, 2022.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - UNION COUNTY

Justin Bennett, Chairman
ATTEST:

Clayton Kiesling, Member

Brenda Green, County Clerk

Frankie Aragon, Member



= LGBMS &

[ Manage Line Items for Budget Opioid Settlement Revenue and Expenditures

+ Adjustment successfully created.

# > Budgets > Adjustments > Items / Files

+Add  +Transfer X Import [l Delete X Export  [fBAR + Submit to Analyst
[ csy lShow: 100 v entries Search:
[ | \ | 7
- = < Origingl PreAdjusted a | Adjusteds - My = s i

O Fund Department | Object Code By dgat‘ Budget Adjustmel'lt] Budget | Status Wi ents:Unrea'd Actions

27000 LG ‘ | \

Abatement 00071 N 47700 | - <
[1 Opioid 9 Federal- LG = 0.00 0.00 21,128.00 @ 21,128.00 | entity | 0 0 Eaiieig

Fund Department Abatement ‘

606 00 1266 1 \

2700016 = |

atement ontract -
2002 General ‘ v
; » g 21,128.00 ti 0 0

L I(;_)uprigid Administration Professional | 0.00 G40 Hedob 0 FRLRY Actions

Services | | \
606 97 2101




UNION COUNTY
Resolution No. 2023-14

Authorization of Rabbit Ear Fire Department (410) (DFA # 20900) budget increase

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Union County meeting in regular session on
November 15, 2022 did propose to make budget adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union does, through Budget Resolution 2023-14 ask that authorization
for the budgetary adjustments be granted, as summarized in the attachment; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union wishes to increase revenue and expenditures by ninety thousand
dollars ($90,000) in Fund 410. The increase in revenue is for the increase in reimbursement of
expenditures related to fires during the summer fire season and a grant awarded from State
Forestry. The increase in expenditures will include an increase for operating expenses, non-capital
purchases, salary, and FICA in preparation of the upcoming fire season.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Union County does
hereby approve the aforementioned budget adjustments and respectfully requests the
authorization for the budgetary adjustments and revisions be granted by the Local Government
Division of the Department of Finance and Administration of the State of New Mexico.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and official seal this 15t day of
November, 2022.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - UNION COUNTY

Justin Bennett, Chairman
ATTEST:

Clayton Kiesling, Member

Brenda Green, County Clerk

Frankie Aragon, Member



= LGBMS &

[ Manage Line Items for Budget Increase REFD Fees

# > Budgets » Adjustments » Items / Files

+add  #Transfer & Import B Delete L Export [ BAR + Submit to Analyst
IHE}Shuw 100 v |entries search: |
S | Originals lPreAdjustqd[ Adjusted My | |
‘ 3 - '; J ! s & s 2
(] Fund Department Object Code Budget | Budget f\d]ustmaﬁt‘ Budget | Statu® ‘Cummentsu"mm" Actions
L |
20900 Fire 0001 No g | | | | ' |
ts/Refunds i [
(] Beitactin DePartmem Reimbursements/Refunds | 37,500,00 37,500,00 7500000 @ 112,500.00 | entity 0O 0 Actions
410 0 1262 !
| |
20800 Fire 0001 No | =
[l Protection  Department 47699 Federal - Other 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 | 15,000.00 entity | 0 0 Actonis
410 00 1255 | |
20900 Fire 2002 General 51050 Salaries - | ] | .
= Protection  Administration  Temporary Positions 30,500.00 | 30,500.00 | 1500000 | 45,500.00 [ RARD; | € 0 Actlons
410 54 2004
20900 Fire 2002 General -
D | Frotection | Administration 52010 FICA- Regular 238000 238000 | 100000 | 3,380.00 entity | 0 0 o
410 54 2064 |
56040 Supplies - |
20000 Fire 2002 General  Furniture/Fixtures ‘ ‘ | =
= Pratection  Administration  /Equipment (Non-Capital) 45,000.00 | 4500000 | 14,000.00 | 5300000 | entity | O 0 Actions
410 54 2081 . ‘
I — 57999 Other Operating ; | i | -
re enera Costs ‘ [ ‘
(] Pﬁgtectlnn Asdimlnlstratlon 37,500.00 | 37,500.00 ‘ 60,000.00 | 97,500.00 l entity 0 0 ‘ Actlohs
4 2076 |

Showing 1 to 6 of 6 entries < Previous | 1 Next »



UNION COUNTY
Resolution No. 2023-15

Authorization of DWI (425) (DFA # 22300) budget increase

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Union County meeting in regular session on
November 15, 2022 did propose to make budget adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union does, through Budget Resolution 2023-15 ask that authorization
for the budgetary adjustments be granted, as summarized in the attachment; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union wishes to increase revenue and expenditures by nineteen
thousand two hundred and twenty dollars ($19,220) in Fund 425 for the increase of the DWI Grant
awarded to Union County. Expenditures will include operating expenses and supplies.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Union County does
hereby approve the aforementioned budget adjustments and respectfully requests the
authorization for the budgetary adjustments and revisions be granted by the Local Government
Division of the Department of Finance and Administration of the State of New Mexico.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and official seal this 15t day of
November, 2022.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - UNION COUNTY

Justin Bennett, Chairman
ATTEST:

Clayton Kiesling, Member

Brenda Green, County Clerk

Frankie Aragon, Member



= LGBMS &

B Manage Line Items for Budget Increase LDWI Grant

# > Budgets > Adjustments > Items / Files

+Add  +Transfer & lImport il Delete X Export  [H1BAR + Submit to Analyst
(csv ]Showi 100 v‘entrles Search:
| Originals IF' dj ed= ‘ Adj 3 | |
- - ey riginale PreAdjust ™ uste = My = "
[[J  Fund | Department Object Cndel Budget “ Budget ‘Adjustmeﬁﬂ Budget Statul _COmmentsl‘Unre?d Actions
47071 l ‘ ‘
22300 0001 No State - ‘ ‘ I o
| pwi Department DWI Local | 0.00 | 0.00 19,220.00 | 19,220.00 entity | 0 0 —
Fund Grant ‘
426 | 00 {RJ%%) ‘ ‘ - ‘
22300 | 3006 DWI 56999 | -
[ pwi Braxention Supplies- | 19,220.00 19,220.00 | 8,110.00 27,330.00 | entity O 0 Ackicin
Fund | | Other | |
426 | 75 2081 ! 5 ‘ .
‘ .
57999 | \ |
22300 | | | |
| 3006 DWI Other | ‘ -
] Eﬁ'd Birs s Operating ‘ 3,000.00 | 3,000.00 8,110.00 | 11,110.00 @ entity | 0 0 | actions
i 426 |75 o | \ !

!
Showing 1 to 3 of 3 entries < Previous 1 Next »



UNION COUNTY
Resolution No. 2023-16

Authorization of Law Enforcement Protection Fund (605) (DFA # 21100) budget increase

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Union County meeting in regular session on
November 15, 2022 did propose to make budget adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union does, through Budget Resolution 2023-16 ask that authorization
for the budgetary adjustments be granted, as summarized in the attachment; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union wishes to increase non-capital purchases expenditures by six
thousand two hundred and thirty nine dollars ($6,239.00) in Fund 605 for the approved role over
funds from fiscal year 2022.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Union County does
hereby approve the aforementioned budget adjustments and respectfully requests the
authorization for the budgetary adjustments and revisions be granted by the Local Government
Division of the Department of Finance and Administration of the State of New Mexico.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and official seal this 15t day of
November, 2022.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - UNION COUNTY

Justin Bennett, Chairman
ATTEST:

Clayton Kiesling, Member

Brenda Green, County Clerk

Frankie Aragon, Member



LGBMS

[ Manage Line Items for Budget Increase LEPF

# > Budgets > Adjustments > Items / Files

+Add  +Transfer & Import B Delete L Export  [A)BAR + Submit to Analyst
{ csy |show‘ 100 v|entrles Search:
O Fund ~ Department  ObjectCode ~ | COriEMals l"’eAdJ“"““!Ad t ﬁt‘ ‘"d-'“md"n t ‘3‘ My =lu 4 Acti
un epartmen ject Code Budget Budget justme | Budget atu ‘tCnmments] nredd Actions
| | |
| | | |
56040 Supplies - ‘ ‘
21100 Law ‘
3001 Law Furniture/Fixtures | | -
[] = Enforcement Enforcement | /Equipment (Non- 56,000.00 | 56,000.00 | 6,239.00 | 62,239.00 . entity | 0 0 | Actions
| Protection ital
| 605 92 Capital) 594 |

Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entries

Wit

< Previous 1 Next »



UNION COUNTY
Resolution No. 2023-17

Authorization of Special Revenue Grant Fund (604) (DFA # 29000) budget increase

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Union County meeting in regular session on
November 15, 2022 did propose to make budget adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union does, through Budget Resolution 2023-17 ask that authorization
for the budgetary adjustments be granted, as summarized in the attachment; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union wishes to increase revenue by one hundred and eighty-eight
thousand eight hundred and sixty dollars ($188,860.00) in Fund 604 for the increase of the Local
Assistance and Tribal Consistency Fund awarded to Union County.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Union County does
hereby approve the aforementioned budget adjustments and respectfully requests the
authorization for the budgetary adjustments and revisions be granted by the Local Government
Division of the Department of Finance and Administration of the State of New Mexico.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and official seal this 15t day of
November, 2022,

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - UNION COUNTY

Justin Bennett, Chairman
ATTEST:

Clayton Kiesling, Member

Brenda Green, County Clerk

Frankie Aragon, Member



LGBMS

B Manage Line Items for Budget Increase LATCF

#> Budgets > Adjustments > Items / Files

+Add 4 Transfer X Import @ Delete X Export  [HBAR + Submit to Analyst
{ cngShuw\ 100 v!entrles Search:
- =~  Object ‘orl ingl PreAd) tedl Adjusted My
ec gingl PreAdjusted usteda = - -
l Fund Department ..~ Budgat\ Budget IAdjustmerﬁ Budget Statu$ ‘Commentslunre“ Actions
"| 29000 Local '
Assistance
‘ Tribal 0001 No 47633 | -
Consistency | pepartment Federal | 0.00 | 0.00 188,860.00  188,860.00 | entity | O 0 B
Fund-LATCF | - Other |
604 00 1643 |

Showing 1to 1 of 1 entries

< Previous 1 Next »




PROJECT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT
Clayton-Union County Economic Development Partnership (CUCEDP)

THIS PROJECT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT ("the Agreement” or "this
Agreement"), is made and entered into by and between the Board of County Commissioners of
Union County, New Mexico ("the Board" or "the County"), a political subdivision of the State of
New Mexico, and the Clayton-Union County Economic Development Partnership, a not-for
profit organized and existing under the Laws of the State of New Mexico ("the Qualifying
Entity").

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Local Economic Development Act, NMSA 1978,
Sections 5-10-1 through 5-10-13 (1993)(as amended)("LEDA"), the County enacted its
Ordinance No. 45 ("the Ordinance"), which provides for economic development projects
within the County;

WHEREAS, the County is authorized under LEDA to provide direct or indirect
assistance to a qualifying entity in the form of, among other things, the purchase, lease,
grant, construction, improvement of land, buildings or other infrastructure, public works
improvements essential to the location or expansion of a qualifying entity;

WHEREAS, the Qualifying Entity supplies services to the government and has made
application for assistance pursuant to LEDA and the Ordinance, and is a "qualifying entity"
under LEDA and the Ordinance;

WHEREAS, the County has reviewed and approved a business plan submitted by the
Qualifying Entity which, among other things, provides a description of the Project, an
implementation plan, and a projection ofjobs anticipated to be created in the County by the
Project;

WHEREAS, the County has determined that it is in the best interest of the welfare
of the citizens of the County to provide assistance pursuant to LEDA and the Ordinance, and
to enter into this Agreement with the Qualifying Entity;

WHEREAS, Section 5-10-10(B) of LEDA provides that, in order to receive
assistance with an economic development project, a Qualifying Entity shall be required to
provide a substantive contribution, which shall be of value and may be paid in money, in-
kind services, jobs, expanded tax base, property or other thing or service of value for the
expansion of the economy; and in Section 5-10-10(C), requires that a Qualifying Entity and
local government providing assistance under LEDA enter into an agreement providing, at a
minimum, (1)the contributions to be made by the Qualifying Entity and the County; (2) the
security provided to the County by the Qualifying Entity in the form of a lien, mortgage or
other indenture and the pledge of the Qualifying Entity's financial or material participation
and cooperation to guarantee its performance pursuant to this Agreement; (3) a schedule for



LEDA Project development and completion, including measurable goals and time limits for
those goals; and (4) provisions for performance review and actions to be taken upon a
determination that project performance is unsatisfactory;

WHEREAS, as provided in this Agreement, the parties intend that this Agreement
will specify the contributions made by the Qualifying Entity and the County, the security
provided to the County by the Qualifying Entity to secure performance of the Qualifying
Entity pursuant to this Agreement, provide a schedule for project development and
completion, and provide provisions for performance review and actions to be taken upon a
determination that project performance is unsatisfactory, all pursuant to LEDA;

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement and agree that the
Agreement will be approved by ordinance, pursuant to LEDA.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and
conditions hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS. As used in this Agreement and any exhibits annexed hereto,
unless the context otherwise requires or is otherwise herein expressly provided, the
following terms shall have the following meanings:

1.2 "LEDA" or "the Act" shall refer to the Local Economic Development Act, NMSA
1978, Sections 5-10-1 through 5-10-13 (1993)(as amended).

1.3 "Agreement" or "this Agreement" refers to this Projection Participation
Agreement.

1.4 "Economic Development Goals" mean those goals set forth in Section 2 of this
Agreement;

1.5 "Effective Date" means that date that this Agreement was signed by the last
signatory.

1.6 "Obligations" means those obligations and duties of the Qualifying Entity and
the Owner under this Agreement and the LEDA Parcel Mortgage;

1.7. Reserved.

1.8 "Party" or "the Parties" shall refer to the signatories of this Agreement.

1.9 "Person" shall mean an individual, a corporation, an association, a joint venture,
a partnership, a limited liability company, an organization, a business, an individual, a trust
or a government or political subdivision thereof or any government agency or any other

legal entity.

1.10 "Project" or "LEDA Project" shall refer to the project prbposed by the Qualifying



Entity described as “Project Brainstorm.”
1.11 Reserved.

1.12 "Qualifying Entity" shall refer to a person who has made application pursuant
to the Ordinance for an economic development project, and whose application has been
accepted. The CUCEDP is the Qualifying Entity for purposes of this Agreement.

1.13 "Term" shall mean the period from the Closing Date until the Qualifying Entity
has performed the Obligations described herein.

2. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GOALS OF THE PROJECT;
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE QUALIFYING ENTITY

2.1 The Qualifying Entity will encourage local economic development through its
Project Brainstorm, described in the application, and in the growth and expansion of the
economy within the County by providing jobs and assistance to businesses within the
County.

2.2 Reserved.

2.3 The Qualifying Entity will directly or indirectly provide five to ten new jobs in
connection with the Project within five (5) years after the Effective Date. Suchjobs shall be
located within the County. The Qualifying Entity shall begin creating jobs as soon as is
practicably possible after the Effective Date. Notwithstanding the time periods set forth in
this Section, if the Project is delayed and the time for completion is extended as provided in
Subsection 6.2 of this Agreement, the period during which jobs are to be created shall be
extended by the amount of additional time provided for completion of construction.

2.4 The Qualifying Entity, as its contribution to the Project, shall pay all costs of the
Project that are not paid for pursuant to this Agreement and described in Section 3, below.

3. CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE COUNTY TO THE PROJECT.

3.1 The County shall provide the Qualifying Entity with an annual contribution of
approximately $ 35,000 to assist the Qualifying Entity to provide the Economic
Development Goals set forth in this Agreement. The County shall also provide an office for
use by the executive director. If funds are not available as described, the County shall have
no obligations pursuant to this paragraph.

3.2 Reserved.
4. PERFORMANCE REVIEW.

4.1 The Qualifying Entity shall provide annual reports to the County concerning its
performance of the Economic Development Goals and the other obligations described in



Section 2, herein. To verify the number of Jobs created by the Qualifying Entity, the
Qualifying Entity will, as a part of its annual reporting, provide detailed reports on this topic.

4.2 The first report shall be provided within fifteen calendar days after the end of the
first year following the Effective Date of this Agreement, and shall cover the year following
the Effective Date.

4.3 Upon receipt of the annual report, the County shall conduct a review of the
Project. The review shall determine whether the Project is in compliance with this
Agreement, the Ordinance, LEDA, and Art. IX Sec. 14 of the Constitution, and is substantially
achieving the goals and objectives herein.

4.4 The annual review shall determine whether the Qualifying Entity has
substantially achieved thejob creation goals as specified in subsection 2.3 herein. The
annual review shall consider both direct and indirect job creation. If, in the opinion of the
County the job creation goals are not met, the annual review shall determine whether the
actual job creation nevertheless achieves a positive benefit-cost ratio and shall make
conclusions and appropriate recommendations.

5. SECURITY.

The obligations of the Qualifying Entity to meet its Economic Development Goals
set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement, and the other covenants and agreements set forth
herein, shall be secured by a written agreement between the parties wherein the Qualifying In
the evet of a failure of the entity to make its economic development goals, the entity shall
reimburse all amounts contributed by the County in support of the Project pursuant to
LEDA, adjusted to reflect the extent to which the economic development goals have been
performed (e.g. if 50% of the jobs to be created which are required as economic
development goals are satisfied, the Qualifying Entity shall be obligated to reimburse 50% of
the aggregate amount of public funding contributed by the County).

6. SCHEDULE FOR PROJECT DEVELOPMENT.

6.1 The Project shall commence immediately after the Effective Date and shall be
completed no later than five years after the Effective Date.

6.2 In the event that the Project is delayed by reason of strikes, inability to procure
materials, riot, insurrection, pandemic, war or other matters which are beyond the reasonable
control of the Qualifying Party, then the performance of the Project shall be excused for the
period of the resulting delay, and the five year period for the completion of the Project shall
be extended for a period equivalent to the period of the delay.

6.3 The maximum extension permitted pursuant to the previous paragraph shall not
exceed two (2) years.

7. TERMINATION OF SECURITY AGREEMENT.



7.1 Upon the satisfaction of the Economic Development Goals at the times and in
the manner required by this Agreement, the Ordinance, and LEDA, the security agreement
entered into pursuant to Section 5 of this Agreement may be terminated. In such event, the
Qualifying Entity shall transmit a letter to the County by hand delivery or overnight
courier in accordance with the provisions of Section 11 stating that it has satisfied the
Economic Development Goals and is requesting termination of the security agreement,

7.2 The County shall have forty-five (45) days from receipt of the request to verify
that the Economic Development Goals have been satisfied in compliance with this
Agreement, the Ordinance, and LEDA. Upon verification, the County shall execute and
deliver to the Qualifying Entity an executed Full Release. In the event that the County
determines that the Economic Development Goals have not been fully satisfied, the County
shall not execute and deliver the Full Release but may execute a partial release
corresponding to the partial satisfaction of the Economic Development Goals.

8. TAXES.

The Qualifying Party shall pay all ad valorem taxes, assessments, charges, fines, and
other impositions attributable to the Project when due and before delinquent. At the
County's request, the Qualifying Party shall furnish proof of such payments. In the event
the Qualifying Party fails to so pay and discharge any such taxes, the County may elect to
pay in lieu of the Qualifying Party, with such payments to be charged immediately and
without further notice to the Qualifying Party and to accrue interest at the rate of eight
percent (8%) per year. Any failure to immediately repay such payments, upon written
notice and demand, shall be deemed a material default of this Agreement.

9. DEFAULT.

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events or omissions shall
constitute an event of default under the LEDA Parcel Mortgage:

(1) the Qualifying Party fails to fulfill the Economic Development Goals and the
other obligations described in Section 2 of this Agreement.

10. REMEDIES FOR DEFAULT.

In the event the Qualifying Entity fails to fulfill the Economic Development Goals and
the other obligations set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement, it shall be in default hereunder.
In the event of such default, the Qualifying Entity shall reimburse all amounts contributed by
the County in support of the Project pursuant to LEDA, adjusted to reflect the extent to which
the economic development goals have been performed (e.g. if 50% of the jobs to be created
which are required as economic development goals are satisfied, the Qualifying Entity shall
be obligated to reimburse 50% of the aggregate amount of public funding contributed by the
County. The Qualifying Entity shall reimburse the County according to the respective
contributions by each within ninety (90) days after notice of such default is given.




11. NOTICES.

All notices, requests, demands and other communications given, or required to be
given, hereunder shall be in writing and shall be given (a) by personal delivery with a
receipted copy of such delivery, (b) by certified or registered United States mail, return
receipt requested, postage prepaid, or (¢) by facsimile transmission with an original mailed
by first class postage prepaid, to the following addresses:

To the County: County Manager
200 Court Street
Clayton, New Mexico 88415

With a copy to: Stephen C. Ross, Esq.
P.O. Box 4774
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502-4774

To the Qualifying Entity:

Executive Director, CUCEDP
4 Main Street
Clayton, New Mexico 88415

Any such notice sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, shall be
deemed to have been duly given and received seventy-two (72) hours after the same is so
addressed and mailed with postage prepaid. Notice sent by recognized overnight delivery
service shall be effective only upon actual receipt thereof at the office of the addressee set
forth above, and any such notice delivered at a time outside of normal business hours shall be
deemed effective at the opening of business on the next day. Notice sent by facsimile shall be
effective only upon actual receipt of the original unless written confirmation is sent by the
recipient ofthe facsimile stating that the notice has been received, in which case the notice shall
be deemed effective as of the date specified in the confirmation. Any party may change its
address for purposes of this Section 10 by giving notice to the other party as set forth in this
Section. Delivery of any copies as provided herein shall not constitute delivery of notice
hereunder.

12. RESERVED.

13. REPRESENTATIONS.

The Parties make the following representations relative to this Agreement:

13.1 Each party isduly authorized under law to enter into and perform this Agreement and

tomake therepresentations and warranties contained inthis Agreement and any related documents
thatthey may sign.



13.2 No party hasknowledge ofany existing violations ofapplicable law orany pending or
threatened litigation that would challenge oreffect their ability orauthority to perform under this
Agreement.

13.3 The Qualifying Entity (i) is duly formed and validly existing; (ii) is fully qualified to do
business in the states where it is doing business; (iii) has the power, authority and legal right to carry
onthe business conducted by itand to engage in the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
The execution and delivery by the Qualifying Entity of this Agreement and the LEDA Parcel
Mortgage have all been authorized by all necessary actions of itsdirectors, as applicable.

14. THIRD PARTIES NOT BENEFITED.

This Agreement ismade and entered into for the sole protection and benefit ofthe
Qualifying Entity and the County and theirrespective permitted successorsand assigns. All
obligations ofthe Owner, the Qualifying Entity, and the County hereunder are imposed solely and
exclusively forthe benefit ofthe Owner, the Qualifying Entity and the County, and no other Person
shall have standing to enforce on behalf of either of said Parties, the other Party's obligations.

15. NOAGENCY.

The County is not the agent or representative of the Owner or the Qualifying Entity,
and the Owner and the Qualifying Entity are not the agents or representatives of the County.
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to make the County liable to anyone for goods
delivered to or labor or services performed upon the LEDA Parcel or for debts or claims
accruing against the Owner or the Qualifying Party. Nothing herein shall be construed to
create a relationship ex contractu or ex delicto between the County and anyone supplying
labor or materials or services for or to the Qualifying Party.

16. NO PARTNERSHIP ORJOINT VENTURE.

Nothing herein or the acts of the parties hereto shall be construed to create a
partnership orjoint venture between the Qualifying Entity and the County.

17. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS.

This Agreement may be executed in one or more identical counterparts which, when
assembled together, shall constitute one agreement which shall be binding on all of the
Parties, their successors and assigns.

18. GOVERNING LAW; ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDY; VENUE.

This Agreement is subject to, and shall be interpreted in accordance with, the Laws
ofthe State of New Mexico, without giving effect to its choice of law provisions. Venue for
any litigation that might arise in connection with this Agreement shall be in Union County in
the District Court for the Eighth Judicial District.



19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT, MERGER, AMENDMENT, AND WAIVER.

This Agreement, the LEDA Parcel Mortgage and the application submitted by the
Qualifying Party pursuant to Ordinance No. 45, contain all of the agreements of the parties
hereto with respect to the matters contained herein and all prior or contemporaneous
agreements or understandings, oral or written, pertaining to any such matters are merged
herein and shall not be effective for any purpose. No provision of this Agreement may be
amended or added to except by an agreement in writing signed by the parties hereto or their
respective successors in interest and expressly stating that it is an amendment of this
Agreement. Failure of either party at any time or times to require performance of any of the
provisions of this Agreement shall in no way affect its right to enforce the same, and a
waiver by either party of any breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall not be
construed to be a waiver by such party of any prior or succeeding breach of such provision or
a waiver by such party of any breach of any other provision.

20. INTERPRETATION.

The headings of this Agreement are for purposes of reference only and shall not
limit or define the meaning of the provisions of this Agreement. This Agreement has
been negotiated at arm's length and between persons (or their representatives)
sophisticated and knowledgeable in the matters dealt with herein. Accordingly, any rule
of law or legal decision that requires interpretation of any ambiguities contained herein
against the party that has drafted it is not applicable and is waived. The provisions of
this Agreement shall be interpreted in a reasonable manner to affect the purpose of the
parties and this document.

21. CALCULATION OF TIME.

All time periods referenced in this Agreement shall be calculated as provided in
NMSA 1978, Section 12-2A-7.

22. EXHIBITS.

All exhibits attached hereto and referred to herein are incorporated in this
Agreement as though fully set forth herein.

23. SEVERABILITY.

Nothing contained herein shall be construed so as to require the commission of
any act contrary to law, and wherever there is any conflict between any provision
contained herein and any present or future statute, law, ordinance or regulation contrary
to which the parties have no legal right to contract, the latter shall prevail but the
provision hereof which is affected shall be curtailed and limited only to the extent
necessary to bring it within the requirements of the law and all other provisions hereof
shall remain in full force and effect.



24, BINDING EFFECT.

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective
heirs, successors or representatives; provided that this Agreement may not be assigned
by either party without the prior express written consent of the other party.

25. TERM.

This Agreement shall remain in force from the Effective Date until it is performed
in full. In the event the Qualifying Entity performs or exceeds the required performance
levels contained in this Agreement, the County may, in its sole discretion, elect to release
the Qualifying Entity.

26. STATUS OF QUALIFYING ENTITY AND OWNER.

The Qualifying Entity, the Owner, and their agents and employees, are not
employees of Union County. The Qualifying Entity, the Owner, and their agents and
employee shall not accrue leave, retirement, insurance, bonding, use of County vehicles,
or any other benefits afforded to employees of the County as a result of this Agreement.

27. ASSIGNMENT.,

Neither the Qualifying Entity nor the Owner shall not assign or transfer any interest
in this Participation Agreement or assign any claims for money due or to become due under
this Participation Agreement without the prior written approval of the County.

28. INDEMNITY, INSURANCE.

28.1 Itis expressly understood and agreed by and among the Qualifying Entity and
the County that the Qualifying Entity shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the County
for all losses, damages, claims orjudgments on account of any suit, judgment, execution,
claims actions or demands whatsoever resulting from the actions or inaction of the
Qualifying Entity as a result of this Agreement.

28.2 The Qualifying Entity shall maintain adequate insurance as set forth in this
paragraph and shall name the County as an additional insured on any such insurance policy.
The Qualifying Entity shall procure and maintain in force at all times during its performance
of its obligations under this Agreement a commercial general Jiability insurance policy with
per claim and aggregate policy limits of not less than $1,000,000. The Qualifying Entity
shall provide proof of such insurance coverage to the County, including copies of policies.

29. RECORDS AND AUDITS.



The Qualifying Entity shall maintain detailed employment and work force
development efforts records. Upon thirty (30) days advanced written notice provided by the
County to the Qualifying Entity, these records shall be subject to inspection by the County.

30. APPROPRIATIONS.

30.1 This Agreement is contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorizations
being made for performance of this Agreement by the Board of County Commissioners
and/or, if state funds are involved, the Legislature of the State of New Mexico. If sufficient
appropriations and authorizations are not made in this or future fiscal years, the County shall
give notice thereof to the Qualifying Entity. Each shall have fifteen (15) days after such
notice to give notice whether the Qualifying Entity will proceed with the Project without
such grant(s), or terminate this Agreement. Such termination shall be without penalty to the
County, and the County shall have no duty to reimburse the Qualifying Entity for
expenditures made in the performance of this Agreement. The County is expressly not
committed to expenditure of any funds until such time as they are programmed, budgeted,
encumbered and approved for expenditure by the Board of County Commissioners. The
County's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations and authorizations have been made
for the fulfillment of this Agreement shall be final and not subject to challenge by the
Qualifying Entity in any way or forum, including a lawsuit.

30.2 Reserved
31. RELEASE.

Upon satisfaction of the County's obligations pursuant to this Agreement, the
Qualifying Entity shall release the County, its Elected Officials, employees, agents, insurers
and attorneys, from and against all liabilities, claims and obligations whatsoever arising
from or under this Agreement. The Qualifying Entity agree not to purport to bind the
County to any obligations not assumed herein, except those that are expressly assumed,
unless the Qualifying Entity has express written authority to do so, and then only within the
strict limits of that authority.

32. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.

The Qualifying Entity warrants that it does not have an interest and shall not acquire
any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the
performance of services required under this Agreement.

33. HEADINGS AND CONSTRUCTION. The headings of this Agreement are for
purposes of reference only and shall not limit or define the meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement. This Agreement has been negotiated at arm's length and between persons (or
their representatives) sophisticated and knowledgeable in the matters dealt with herein and
represented by counsel. Accordingly, any rule of law or legal decision that requires
interpretation of any ambiguities contained herein against the party that has drafted it is not
applicable and is waived. The provisions of this Agreement shall be interpreted in a

10



reasonable manner to affect the purpose of the parties and this document.

34, FURTHERDOCUMENTS.

Each of the parties hereto shall, on and after the Closing Date, execute and deliver
any and all additional papers, documents, instructions, assignments and other instruments,
and shall do any and all acts and things reasonably necessary in connection with the
performance ofits obligations hereunder and to carry out the intent of the parties hereto.

11




THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISIOINERS
OF UNION COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

Chair

Member

Member

ATTEST:

County Clerk

Date

Approved as to form:

County Attorney

THE QUALIFYING ENTITY

Name:

Date:

Attest:

12




Date:

FEIN:

Union County Business Registration No.:

13



Form of LEDA Security Agreement

The Clayton-Union County Economic Development Partnership, a New Mexico not-
for-profit corporation (CUCEDP), for good and valuable consideration, agrees that in the
event of a failure of the Qualifying Entity to meet the Economic Development Goals set forth
in Section 2 of the Project Participation Agreement (PPA) wherein CUCEDP is benefitted by
funds granted pursuant to Ordinance No. 45 of Union County, New Mexico, and the Local
Economic Development Act, NMSA 1978, Sec. 10-5-1 et seq., and upon written declaration of
default under the PPA by the County, that the CUCEDP shall reimburse all amounts
contributed by the County in support of the Project pursuant to LEDA, adjusted to reflect the
extent to which the economic development goals have been performed (e.g. if 50% of the
jobs to be created which are required as economic development goals are satisfied, the
Qualifying Entity shall be obligated to reimburse 50% of the aggregate amourﬁ of public
funding contributed by the County). Any such payment shall be made withiﬁ ten (10) days of
notice to CUCEDP by Union County of the failure of its obligations under the PPA, and the
failure of CUCEDP to cure the failure as detailed in the notice. All the terms and conditions of
the PPA are incorporated herein as though fully set forth.

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISIOINERS
OF UNION COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

Chair

Member

14



Member

ATTEST:

County Clerk

Date

Approved as to form:

County Attorney

THE QUALIFYING ENTITY

Name:

Date:

Afttest:

Date:

FEIN:

Union County Business Registration No.:

15



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF UNION COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-18

APPROVING THE APPLICATION OF THE CLAYTON-UNION COUNTY
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP PURSUANT TO THE LOCAL
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ACT, SECTIONS 5-10-1 THROUGH 5-10-13 NMSA 1978
AND ORDINANCE NO. 45

WHEREAS, THE CLAYTON-UNION COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
PARTNERSHIP (“CUCEDP”) has submitted a Project Application to THE BOARD OF
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF UNION COUNTY ("the County") pursuant to Ordinance
No. 45, which establishes procedures for seeking economic development assistance from the
County pursuant to the Local Economic Development Act, Sections 5-10-1 through 5-10-13
NMSA 1978 ("the Act");

WHEREAS, the County has received and reviewed a project application submitted by
THE CLAYTON-UNION COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP for
economic development assistance (the "LEDA Application");

WHEREAS, Sections 5-10-3(1) (1), (2), and (3) of the Act define a qualifying entity as,
among other things, an industry for the manufacturing, processing or assembling of agricultural
or manufactured products, a commercial enterprise for storing, warehousing, distributing or
selling products of agriculture, mining or industry, and/or a corporation that is a business in
which all or part of the activities of the business involves the supplying of services to the general
public or to governmental agencies or to a specific industry or customer;

WHEREAS, THE CLAYTON-UNION COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
PARTNERSHIP appears to be a qualifying entity supplying services to the general public and to
local governmental agencies as defined in Ordinance No. 45 and LEDA;

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners and County staff have reviewed the
LEDA Application; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the findings set forth in Section 1 of this Resolution, the Board
of County Commissioners has determined that the application for LEDA assistance is complete,
that the proposed project, Project Brainstorm, is consistent with the County's economic
development plan and Ordinance, that the project is feasible and will create jobs and expand the
economic base of the County, and that it is in the best interests of the citizens of Union County to
take further steps to provide assistance as requested in the Application pursuant to County's
economic development plan as identified in Ordinance 43.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners, as follows:

1. Findings. The Clayton-Union County Economic Development Partnership is a



"qualifying entity" as defined in NMSA 1978, Section 5-10-3(1)(2). The Application complies
with the County's economic development plan, Ordinance No. 45, LEDA and Art. IX Sec. 14 of
the New Mexico Constitution and should be approved.

2. Approval of Application. The Application complies with the County's economic
development plan, Ordinance No. 45, LEDA and Art. IX Sec. 14 of the New Mexico
Constitution and is hereby accepted and approved. The Board of County Commissioners may
consider final approval of the Project Application and Project Participation Agreement through
an ordinance in accordance with Ordinance No. 45.

3. Publication of Notice of Hearing. Notice of a public hearing concerning the adoption
of an ordinance approving the Clayton-Union County Economic Development Partnership
Project Application shall be published as required by Ordinance No. 45.

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISIOINERS
OF UNION COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

Chair

Member

Member

ATTEST:

County Clerk

Date

Approved as to form:

County Attorney



Resolution No. 2023-19

Resolution Supporting the New Mexico Counties
2023 Legislative Priorities

WHEREAS, in September 2022, the New Mexico Counties Board of Directors approved four legislative
priorities for consideration by the New Mexico Legislature at its 2023 session; and

WHEREAS, NMC has requested that the Board of County Commissioners in each of the state’s 33
counties discuss and approve support for NMC's legislative priorities as an important step in assuring
maximum understanding of NMC’s legislative priorities at the county level; and

WHEREAS, county support enables NMC to demonstrate strong local and statewide support to the state
legislature for the following issues:

1 HB2 Appropriations
Detention Reimbursement Fund
Increase the County Detention Facilities Reimbursement Act fund to reimburse counties for the cost
of housing New Mexico Corrections Department (NMCD) inmates.
o Currently the fund is $5 million.

e According to the New Mexico Sentencing Commission, the five-year average cost to house
NMCD inmates is $§7.5 million.

Prisoner Transport and Extradition

Create a line item in the DFA budget with $750,000 to reimburse counties that provide
transportation for state prisoners.

o Statute 4-44-18C NMSA requires the state to make such payment.
¢ Counties should not be responsible to pay for state prisoner extradition.

Emergency Medical Services
Create a line item in the Department of Health Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Bureau budget
with $10 million to assist local government emergency medical services.

« Emergency medical services in New Mexico have been significantly underfunded for years.

« Current state appropriations, taxes collected through local GRT increments, and other sources

of revenue do not provide sufficient support to local governments to meet community needs,
especially in rural areas of the state.

« Emergency medical services are vital to the health and welfare of New Mexico citizens.

2. Public Safety Package
Return to Work
« Local governments struggle to fill critical public safety positions.

« Allowing able and willing retirees to return to work would create a pool of qualified applicants
to fill essential public safety positions.

Recruitment and Retention

o Sufficient numbers of detention staff are essential to a safe and well-operated detention facility
which is directly correlated to community safety.

« A public safety recruitment and retention fund would provide local governments with much
needed resources to provide detention services to their communities.

Page 1 of 2



Staffing Crisis in Fire & EMS
Create a Fire and EMS fund at $50 million to support volunteer and paid staff.
« Many New Mexico fire departments are volunteer or combination departments; number of
volunteers has greatly declined.

e Call volume and large events continues to rise in New Mexico.

3. Courthouse Funding
Create a fund for construction and renovation for state district courthouses.

.. IPRA Election Related Records & Data
Clearly define how IPRA relates to election records and data.

« Need clear guidance on many aspects related to elections records and data that may be subject
to IPRA.

e (2)NMSA1-12-69.A.and G.1-12~70.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the [County Name] Board of County Commissioners does

hereby support NMC’s legislative priorities as set forth above and urges that legislation incorporating
these priorities be enacted by the state legislature during its 2023 session.

ADOPTED this 15th of November, 2022.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF UNION, NEW MEXICO

Justin Bennet, Chair

Clayton Kiesling, Member

Frankie Aragon, Member

ATTEST:

Brenda Green
County Clerk

Page 2 of 2



|

NEW MEXICO
COUNTIES

33 STRONG

444 Galisteo Street
Santa Fe, NM 87501

877-083-2101
505-983-2101

Fax: 505-983-4396

NMCOUNTIES.ORG

Memorandum

Date: October 28, 2022

To:  NMC Board of Directors, Commissioners, and Managers

From: Joy Esparsen, NMC Executive Director

Re:  Protocol for Board of County Commission NMC 2023 Legislative Priority
Endorsement

The New Mexico Counties (NMC) Board of Directors approved four legislative
priorities for consideration by the New Mexico Legislature during the 2023
session. In preparation for the session and in an effort to promote
communication among NMC and the 33 counties, we request that board
members:

1. Present the NMC 2023 legislative priorities to their respective Board of
County Commission (BCC) for support.

2. Send a signed copy of your BCC support (resolution template attached) for
the NMC 2023 legislative priorities to awebb@nmcounties.org.

Please contact me if you have any questions about the priorities.

Sincerely,

—

Joy Esparsen
NMC Executive Director



[

NEW MEXICO

2023 Lesg

COUNTIES

31 STROMG

HB 2 Appropriations

Detention Reimbursement Fund
Increase the County Detention Facility
Reimbursement Act fund to reimburse
counties for the cost of housing NM
Corrections Department inmates.
Currently the NM Legislature appropriates
$5 million. According to the NM
Sentencing Commission, the five-year
average to house NMCD inmates is $7.5
million.

Prisoner Transport & Extradition
Create a line itemn in the NM Department of
Finance & Administration budget of
$750,000 to reimburse counties that
provide transportation for state prisoners.
Statutes require the state to make such
payments, however no money has been
appropriated to counties for many years.
Counties should not be responsible to pay
for state prisoner extradition.

Emergency Medical Services
Create a $10 million line item in the
Department of Health Emergency Medical
Services (EMS) Bureau budget to assist local
government EMS services. Current state
appropriations, taxes collected through local
GRT increments, and other sources of revenue
do not provide sufficient support to local
governments to meet community needs,
especially in rural areas of the state, EMS
services are vital to the health and welfare of
New Mexico citizens.

NMC
Legislative

Joy Esparsen
505.660.9629

Contacts jesparsen@nimcounties.org

Grace Philips
505.690.6319
gphilips@nmecounties.org

g
lative Pri6rities

The Fifst Session of the 56t Legislature

Public Safety Package
Return to Work

Local governments struggle to fill critical public
safety positions. Allowing able and willing
retirees to return to work would create a pool of
qualified applicants to fill essential public safety
positions.

Recruitment & Retention
Sufficient numbers of detention staff are
essential to a safe and well-operated detention
facility which is directly correlated to
community safety. A public safety recruitment
and retention fund would provide local
governments with much needed resources to
provide detention services to their communities.

Staffing Crisis in Fire & EMS
Create a $50 million Fire and EMS fund to
support volunteer and paid staff. Many New
Mexico fire departments are volunteer, or
combination departments and the number of
volunteers has greatly declined. Call volume and
large events continues to rise in New Mexico.

Courthouse Funding
Create a fund for construction and
renovation of state district courthouses.

IPRA Election-Related Records
& Data

Clearly define how IPRA relates to election
records and data.

Katherine Crociata
505.350.9357
kerociata@outlook.com




UNION COUNTY, NEW MEXICO BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS DECLARATION OF
VACATION FOR THE UNDEVELOPED PORTION OF BACA STREET SEPARATING BLOCK 38, BLOCK
39, BLOCK 42, THE UNDEVELOPED PORTION OF PINARD STREET SEPERATING BLOCK 39,
BLOCK 41, BLOCK 42 AND THE UNDEVELOPED ALLEYS IN BLOCK 38, BLOCK 39, BLOCK 41,
BLOCK 42 LYING NORTH OF HIGHWAY 56/64 IN THE UNINCORPORATED PORTION OF THE
SUNNYSIDE ADDITION, CLAYTON NEW MEXICO.

Application for Vacation of the alleys within Block 38, Block 39, Block 41, and Block 42 of the
unincorporated portion of the Sunnyside Addition Subdivision and the undeveloped portion of
Baca Street separating Block 38, Block 39 and Block 42 and the undeveloped portion of Pinard
Street separating Block 39, Block 41, and Block 42 in Union County, New Mexico having been
filed by Owaissa Heiman, Owida Franz, and Clinton Franz and the Board of Union County
Commissioners being satisfied that Ms. Heiman and Mr. and Mrs. Franz are the sole property
owners of property in Block 38, Block 39, Block 41, and Block 42 of the unincorporated portion
of the Sunnyside Addition and property on both sides of undeveloped Baca and Pinard Streets
between Block 38, Block 39, Block 41, and Block 42 in the unincorporated portion of the
Sunnyside Addition and further finding the alley platted in said Block 38, Block 39, Block 41, and
Block 42 of the unincorporated portion of the Sunnyside Addition and Baca and Pinard Streets
separating Block 38, Block 39, Block 41, and Block 42 have never been cut and is not required
for maintenance or construction of any utility lines or otherwise by the County or any adjacent
land owner and that granting the closure will not impair any persons rights or ownership
interest in connection with their property,

NOW THEREFORE the Union County Commissioners upon motion and unanimous vote declare:

1. The alleys platted within Block 38, Block 39, Block 41, and Block 42 of the
unincorporated portion of the Sunnyside Addition Subdivision and the undeveloped
portion of Baca Street and Pinard Street separating Block 38, Block 39, Block 41, and
Block 42 in the unincorporated portion of the Sunnyside Addition in Union County,
New Mexico is not needed and its vacation will not adversely affect the interest of
persons on contiguous land or persons within the subdivision, and the alleys shown
on the plat of Block 38, Block 39, Block 41, and Block 42 in the unincorporated
portion of the Sunnyside Addition Subdivision in Union County and the undeveloped
portion of Baca Street and Pinard Street separating Block 38, Block 39, Block 41, and
Block 42 are hereby vacated. The land comprising said alley and street revert in
equal proportions to the adjoining lot owners upon recording of this order. The
Union County Clerk shall make a notation on the plat of the Sunnyside Addition
maintained in the Office of the Clerk of Union County, New Mexico memorializing
this action.

DONE THIS 15™ DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2022.

Justin Bennett, Chair

Attested: Brenda Green, Clerk



brandy.thompson@unionnm.us

From: curtis.skaggs@unionnm.us

Sent: Monday, November 14, 2022 2:32 PM
To: brandy.thompson@unionnm.us
Subject: rabbit ear station

The Sheriff's office is currently housed at the old National Guard Armory and will be moving to the Court House at some
point in the next few years. Once the office is moved from the armory, we will lose all storage space for large items such
as vehicles, trailers, ATVs, and training equipment. We will also lose our secured garage area for large evidence items
and a safe place to conduct search warrants on vehicles. Knowing that this day is coming we would like to take
possession of the old Rabbit Ear Fire Department that is located on 1% street in Clayton. The Sheriff's Office has recently
obtained money to assist in paying the salaries of new hires which frees up money in our budget that was initially
budgeted for salaries. We would like to use the money that was initially budgeted by the county for the salaries to begin
remodeling the old fire station. We would like to start the renovation as soon as possible so it is ready for us to move
our equipment in by the time we must move out of the armory.



PERMIT NO. 480

This permit is granted on this _15th _ day of Nov. , 2022, by the Board of Commissioners of Union County,
New Mexico, (County) and Plateau Telecommunications, Incorporated, (Permittee),

Address: 7111 N. Prince Clovis, NM 88101

This permit is for the sole purpose of allowing Permittee to lay (pipe or cable) for the purpose of fiber optic
telecommunication lines across a certain designated County road lying, situated and being in the County of Union, State
of New Mexico, more particularly described as follows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
Plateau Telecommunications, Incorporated requests to hore / plow crossing beneath Union County Road CO 67
a.k.a. Wisdom Road for the purpose of installing new Fiber Optic cable in an on-going project to improve the
telephone and/or internet service to cooperative members. This crossing will be within the SW4SW4 of 32 T24N
R35E and Lot 4 within Section 5 T23N R35E.
Approximate BOP coordinates: 36° 15' 37.21"'N, 103° 14' 9.02"W
Approximate EOP coordinates: 36° 15' 36.49"'N, 103° 14' 9.02"W

This permit is subject to the following provisions:

1. a.) Permittee will dig a trench/bore across/under the above-described County Road approximately

Three (3°) feet deep.

b.)Pipe and/or cable made of 12 Fiber Optic cable encased in HDPE.

¢.) Pipe and/or cable shall be 1 % inches in diameter and of the type Schedule jncluding the HDPE duct
that the cable will be placed within,
2. Permitiee will then fill and compact the trench to restore the road to an even level suitable for public traffic.
Restoration of the road shall be subject to the inspection and approval of the County Road Supervisor.
3. Permittee shall install visible, identifiable markers on site, indicating the location of the pipe.
4. Permittee is to perform the construction is such a way as to provide adequate fill on both ends of the road and
shall construct any structure that may be necessary or desirable in connection therewith.
5. All excavation and construction performed under this permit shall be consistent with all laws, rules and
regulations of the State of New Mexico and of the County.
6. In the event that the County desires to improve the above-described County Road, the County reserves the
right to request from the Permittee, if necessary to remove and/or relocate in order to make such improvements.
The County will give Permittee notice in advance of making such improvetnents.
7. Permittee will hold harmless Union County for any damage to third parties resulting from the excavation of
fill.
8. Permittec shall erect sufficient warning barricades and signs to alert all traffic of the hazard during
construction and restoration.
9. At least twenty-four (24) hour notice shall be provided to the Union County Road Department Supervisor of
the commencement and completion of any construction.

Witness our hands and seals this 15th  day of Nov. , 2022 .
SEAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COUNTY OF UNION, NEW MEXICO
ATTEST
CHAIRMAN
MEMBER

COUNTY CLERK MEMBER



To/NM-562

532/ T24NIR35E

{Unionl€O|67/iWIsdom|Road|

EQP:|103!260135N 41 03/235839W).

a

S5iT23N|R35E

Vicinity/of|\Work(@rder
JApproximate Location of Permit!

Clayton) Union County, New:Mexico

ExpertGRS|Basemap:|mapbox;iOpenStrectMap

ExpertGPS




To NM-562

Approximate Location of Permit

Clayton, Union County, New Mexico ,u*"'

lu
'l $32 T24N R35E -
| - -
| -
| =
- “r'n—
| o """”
! _J"tr_’ )
. Unlon CO 64 _,..r""“
1 .r__.-"l
| o
| ' = e
L BOP: 36.260326N, 103.235643W
| Union CO 67 / Wisdom Road — - ey =
e e, TN —— 1 TRam|
EOP: 103.260135N, 103. 235830W
S5 T23N R35E P
v-'r."’
—‘_.ﬂ‘.
-"“&Ir.
M;.‘u
P
.w""“ﬂ
Vicinity of Work Order I
n‘nrl“.

ExpertGPS Basemap: CalTopo.com

ExpertGPS

MN



l yton tNew}Mexnro; !

Y
‘r., iz

JUnlunlf 01045»

m |Un|(m]CO byf WI-(IUIII]RU ad |

I‘ruw(l L’oc,mnn]

| .
giSedani|New|Mexico

ntyiNew/Mexico)

gt

S0 @ BAEY Y,

=
=
Y

0

omap:[mapboxiiOpenStre




\ |
\ i
L |
\ i
Clayton, New Mexico_-~~ l
Clayton |
i
o NM-402 Q ??
Us-56 ‘ : o
87|
e : R
Texline
"..
|
4 NM-402 :
o N NM-562
(592' Unlon GO 64 )
Union CO 67 / Wisdom Road “_;—M 2_9"‘”
.Pro]ect Location e
(562)
l|I
i |
(562) - | FM 296
' +» NM-402
Approximate Location of Permit (_'42 1) Sedan, NewMexico .
o |
. i
Clayton, Union County, New Mexico i
|
[ ExperlGPS Basemap: © mapM.@_dpenSlreetMap contributors

*
N

ExpertGPS



PERMIT NO. 481

This permit is granted on this _15th day of Ngy _, 2022, by the Board of Commissioners of Union
County, New Mexico, (County) and E.N.M.R. Telephone Cooperative, (Permittee),

Address: 7111 N. Prince Clovis, NM 88101

This permit is for the sole purpose of allowing Permittee to lay (pipe or cable) for the purpose of Fiber Optic
telecommunication lines across a certain designated County road lying, situated and being in the County of Union, State
of New Mexico, more particularly described as follows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
ENMR Plateau would like cross Perico Creek Road to install new Fiber Optic cable in an on-going project to
improve the telephone and internet service to our cooperative members. This crossing will be from Section 33 to
32 T26N R33E (Please see attached aerial map)

This permit is subject to the following provisions:

1. a.) Permittee will dig a trench across the above-described County Road approximately

3’ feet deep.

b.)Pipe and/or cable made of 12 Fiber Optic cable.

c.) Pipe and/or cable shall be 1 % inches in diameter and of the type Schedule including the duct that the
cable will be placed within for crossings.
2. Permittee will then fill and compact the trench to restore the road to an even level suitable for public traffic.
Restoration of the road shall be subject to the inspection and approval of the County Road Supervisor.
3. Permittee shall install visible, identifiable markers on site, indicating the location of the pipe.
4. Permittee is to perform the construction is such a way as to provide adequate fill on both ends of the road and
shall construct any structure that may be necessary or desirable in connection therewith.
5. All excavation and construction performed under this permit shall be consistent with all laws, rules and
regulations of the State of New Mexico and of the County.
6. In the event that the County desires to improve the above-described County Road, the County reserves the
right to request from the Permittee, if necessary to remove and/or relocate in order to make such improvements.
The County will give Permittee notice in advance of making such improvements.
7. Permittee will hold harmless Union County for any damage to third parties resulting from the excavation of
fill.
8. Permittee shall erect sufficient warning barricades and signs to alert all traffic of the hazard during
construction and restoration.
9. At least twenty-four (24) hour notice shall be provided to the Union County Road Department Supervisor of
the commencement and completion of any construction.

Witness our hands and seals this 15th day of Nov___ ,20 22 .

SEAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COUNTY OF UNION, NEW MEXICO
ATTEST
CHAIRMAN
MEMBER

COUNTY CLERK MEMBER



Perico Creek |

-

-
. ?m‘ L ' f
wz_-‘;"f-’.' ] ' ‘w

Lo

. &
Section 32 T26N R33E |o = / Section 33 T26N R33E |

Vicinity of Work Area

_ , (R T
k’ Approx. Location of Permit |
Union County, New Mexico

ExpertGPS Basemap: mapbox, OpenStreetMap

Perico Creek crossin
ExpertG PS 50 0 50 100 150 200 250 300 3sng 400 450

Scale: 1 1500.




PERMIT NO. 482

This permit is granted on this 15th  day of Noy _, 2022, by the Board of Commissioners of Union County,

New Mexico, (County) and Plateau Telecommunications, Incorporated, (Permittee),

Address: 7111 N. Prince Clovis, NM 88101

This permit is for the sole purpose of allowing Permittee to lay (pipe or cable) for the purpose of fiber optic

telecommunication lines across a certain designated County road lying, situated and being in the County of Union, State

of New Mexico, more particularly described as follows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Plateau Telecommunications, Incorporated requests to bore / plow crossing heneath Union County Saddle
Mountain Road for the purpose of installing new Fiber Optic cable in an on-going project to improve the telephone
and/or internet service to cooperative members. This crossing will be within the NE4ANW4 of Section 20 T26N

R36E and within the SE4SW4 of S17 T26N R36E.
Approximate BOP coordinates: 36° 28' 54.86"'N, 103° 7' 19.70"W
Approximate EOP coordinates: 36° 28' 55.36"N, 103° 7' 19.70"W

This permit is subject to the following provisions:

1. a.) Permittee will dig a trench/bore across/under the above-described County Road approximately

Three (3°) feet deep.

b.)Pipe and/or cable made of 12 Fiber Optic cable encased in HDPE.

c.) Pipe and/or cable shall be 1 %4” inches in diameter and of the type Schedule including the HDPE duct
that the cable will be placed within.
2. Permittee will then fill and compact the trench to restore the road to an even level suitable for public traffic.
Restoration of the road shall be subject to the inspection and approval of the County Road Supervisor.
3. Permittee shall install visible, identifiable markers on site, indicating the location of the pipe.
4. Permittee is to perform the construction is such a way as to provide adequate fill on both ends of the road and
shall construct any structure that may be necessary or desirable in connection therewith.
5. All excavation and construction performed under this permit shall be consistent with all laws, rules and
regulations of the State of New Mexico and of the County.
6. In the event that the County desires to improve the above-described County Road, the County reserves the
right to request from the Permittee, if necessary to remove and/or relocate in order to make such improvements.
The County will give Permittee notice in advance of making such improvements.
7. Permittee will hold harmless Union County for any damage to third parties resulting from the excavation of
fill
8. Permittee shall erect sufficient warning barricades and signs to alert all traffic of the hazard during
construction and restoration.
9. At least twenty-four (24) hour notice shall be provided to the Union County Road Department Supervisor of
the commencement and completion of any construction.

Witness our hands and seals this 15th  day of Nov  ,2022 .

SEAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COUNTY OF UNION, NEW MEXICO
ATTEST
CHAIRMAN
MEMBER

COUNTY CLERK MEMBER



Sdouadx3

deppaansuadg  ¥ogqdeideliaseg| mn_mn._m_nxm

|

JIlI2d 10 :o:muo ajewixoid

i;

29EM;NOZL 0ZS

"% M\:OLBEL 2604 'N.99 55 82 98 :dOR

m.m:mmmwz EDOEFN._DUN ucj_uH__ r__u:.;x_ o

J9EUINIZL LIS : = .:._wm,m..ro\..ﬁu_nnmwmw




SdoHHMadx3

N
+
wooodo) ) dewasey Sgopedxy ¥ ] "3 oA - =
m___a, .Z \ ou_mwm_.,_ MaN bmﬂ.ﬂe_o :o_t_.ﬂﬂo;m_mo
»\ : 5 b A n JuLad ho”:w__ﬁ._muo._ wﬁE_mEn_wq o
4 ! 7 B | |
rd ﬂ. ﬁﬁv 198l01d J0 ANUIDIA
I S
/ F iy Oy _ M
39¢¥ N9Z1 0ZS / 4 # ’ O ~ :,.m -
ﬁ f# h__q Eﬂn_u o5~ ﬁ .
{ | |
\ ; MDL 6L S0} ‘N.IB'FE BT L9E .n__nn.m
A e e EE e M ROWIRRES ) Xl 1 !mﬁuu !!.__l!_.l. ﬂ.u.rJ
..... w.. e v A : Bwah.mr ona_. 29E;55 mN..,m..m_.&Om . L a.mv.u.h_" e,
L ead Al Yadl
13 < .w ,\“ .?ﬁ
.ﬁ uw o L [ SePeRdHL
i
\ H.F \




Sdouadx3

.nm__.._uwwhmcwn_o ‘xoqdew :dewaseg S49pdxs

_st_ z...mz iucmmwu._:n_c: ,:ng_.n.

.!

ll._

ODIXAN MAN :ot.ﬂm_u

ADY
..meu -

<

'39¢H NOZL 0ZS

\. :
Umox UrEIUNOW; 3IPPES Aunog! _._u_c;rl....
P J‘ 3§

= i

J9EHINOZL LLST




SdoHadx3

NN
*

wododo] |2n) dewsseq S4ouUadxy _

e e

: _ { } - el ™ 4
¥ . \ 1 - /
. e N 3 mELL o el "

=T - =3 i: T - 1

=X . ; e RS i !-ou_xm_z J b.::aQ uolun .:oe»m_o.l[
g By ) w s

s -l

I'§
i
_’uu...._.__..._.'
/
|
|

!
\
| & )
|
]
-

rm||..l| oz o
. e
]

P

vy

vl
]
X
i
L}
1

{

]

S
/

_ il
Pl iy,
B — - { Bl v Tl
- -
= i s — 1
b 5 4 =300 !
[ . tr..&-.. z — - ” 1
T A ™, - — —— -
i e = . S
" 133foid o uoneao -, i
- P ro s e |
e e —_— i baca - e
- F v —
— L e
e Sl ~~
s =3 = ]
- - s = - P ‘
o "
-

Y - e
e ~ - : - ——
~ N = = ¥ ~ e 1o =y
- . o e T F,

- e s - el e R - T




86°L8

8s5°L8 0vEST 2Z02/81/0T TO0T666Z8LIT 600Z-¥0-10% YIANIE/JINNVId TO0TE666TBLIZ HANI J0dEd FDIJA0 6L80L O TO
60°€6¢€ avo¥
zzoez/9e/01
$9°SST L6€82 Zz0T/8T/0T L90%%T 9L0T-52-20% II0/SYALTIIE L90TFT HANI 60°€6€
Sy LET L6€8T 2z0Z/8T/0T 009%%T 9L02-52-20¥% ¥IdD/LIA/ALTI/IANTAD 009¥¥T HANI SI¥YA OLOY YA¥N 8L80L O 10
ST ELE avoy
zzoez/9z/0T
STTELE
Sz ELE YLEBT 220T/8T/0T 9093L-0226 9.0T-52-20% EJYL/IAVIE/ISOE 9099L-0226 HANI SI¥Yd £ OIE STUNID DKW LLBOL O TO
8% €9% NITNIYD
zz0Zz/97/01
8% €9¥%
8% €9% 60582 2Z0Z/8T/0T LI¥8 €202-T¥-L0% MVIT dWNd NOIIVIS XId LT¥8 HANI 'ONI ONITIINA S.MOUW 9LBOL O IO
s6°¢€ avox
zzoe/9e/01
S6°€
S6°€ 90%8Z 2202/81/0T €298851¢€ £€T02-52-20% FOUVHD FONUNII €T988STE #ANI ONI INIWAINDI 2 SYD IANIT SL80L O 10
ZLZES INIWIDEOINT MY'T
zzoe/9z/01
zL7zE9
ZL 2ES L€582 2T0T/6T/0T €9TLOTYHIANT 0T0Z-80-T0% ZE3 WISH TYONNY €92L0TVIIANIHANI DT ‘TI04IXET ¥L80L O TO
00°2SSLT SNITIS/DONIGEOITY
zz02/92/0T
€ZAd FE3 HONUYNAINIYW TYONNY 00°2SSLT
00°2S5LT Z8€8T 2T0Z/8T/0T TOTS0OMSMANT €T0Z-%0-TO0¥ TOT900-MSY-ANI HANI ONI ‘SOA0D €L80L O T0
00°00T SYANOISSIWWOD
zz0T/%2/01
00°00T
00°00T (21114 zz02/81/0T €2-ZTA €L02-I0-T0% SENG JIIHSYIEWEN £ZAL @30¥ OOYOYLSE ONWIT T2 TLBOL O IO
SL°8L0T SYINOISSTWWCD
zzoz/9e/0T
SL°8LOT
SL°8LOT YPE8T 2Z0Z/8T/0T 22%10T T0TZ-T0-10% SEADIAYES A€E0T TTZHTOT #ANI SEIYIDOSSY ¥ NIAQYWH d INITO ILBOL O 10
L9°99 TIOYNTA RINAOD
L9°2T €582 2z0Z/6T/0T 22Z0Z6TOT 6002-20-T0¥ SYEATIOH AT INIWESHNGWIZY zz0T/92/01
302 L9799
00 %Y 91582 2202/68/60 220TLZ6 0T0Z-20-T0% IVTILLFY FLVITISAY ¥H WHIA ¥3d YIDYYD TTAYIHD 0L80L O TO
QuUnoury od HIYG # 90TOAUT wajl suTrl ucTtT UQ..mHUme SWeN JChAS (e #MO
I :obeg ONILSIT OIHD (09D=HD) PT:82:0T 2TZ/¥T/TIT :33=Q



TYLOL / [/ 8£'L8L8Y¥ 9T
SE"TEET avod
zzoz/9z/0T
08 ¥T¥ ZLEBZ 7z0Z/8T/0T 9%TIS0T0908d Z10Z-52-20%  0S/0S DT L¥D 9¥TS0T090Sd HANI SETIEET
55°906 TLEBE zZ0T/8T/0T STTISOT0908d ZI0T-ST-20% ANVL STTS0T0S0Sd HANI I¥D NEWAYM 5880L O IO
00°S86%Z SITW L¥OD TYNOILDIYIOD
zzoz/9z/oT
zzoz/o0t/6 - zzOZ/1/6 00°586%Z
00°586%Z L0%82 2Tz02/81/0T 22026 LOEZ-LL-%TY SYINOSINd A0 ONISNOEAINID NOIINZLIA OTYNOGTYW 1IDIA ¥880L O 10
¥z LS avod
zz0Z/92/01
¥z LS
vZLS S6€8T zZ0Z/8T/0T T-¥6LLZS 9.0T-52-20% HOLIMS TOMINOD dIY T-P6LLZS HANI SYIHIO¥YE MOL £880L O 10
06°L0S avod
zzoz/9z/0t
06°L0S
06°L0S £¥EBT Z20T/81/0T 8LEY £%0Z-S2-20¥ SHYIL (2) BLEY HANI FOIAYES ANV FEIL W-XIS z8goL O IO
00°00% SNOILDETI
zezoz/9e/0t
00°00%
c0-00% LS¥8T 2Z0Z/81/0T 220ZLTIOT 6T0Z-50~T0¥ NOTLVISNYHL HSINVAS YYEOT NOYVHS 1880L O T0
0V ¥Se SOATE/¥AZ0/INIYNW
zezoez/92/0T
[\ A8 4-t4
'3 28 2-14 SES8T zz0Z/8T/0T Z¥ET €£202-€0-T0% TOALNOD LS3Id THET HANI TOJINOD ISEd 8.UN¥d 0880L O IO
85 L8 ONITII/ONIQ¥ODIH
zzoz/9z/0T
Junouy od ZIVQ  # SOTOoAUL wa3T SUTT uot3dTansaq awen ALYA 10

z :abeg

ONILSIT ADIHD

(09DFHD) ¥T:8Z:0T ZT/¥T/TT :93eQ




897991

0£°98%

967 ¢t

007 8L

6T TST

08°2L

0Z°16¢

9L"LS

89°1¢

T§°08C
897 €6C
S6°P1
9L°89
SL°89
78 STT
6€°2¢
L0798
66°T¢E
T§°08T

67 6LT

Junouy

S1€8C
#0d

:abeg

0TO0CZ%0T0%

0TOZY0TO0¥

6T0ZS0TOY

6T0CSOTOY

T80ZE0TO%

0TO0ZZOTOV

0T0ZZO0T0V

9L0CESOTY

9L0Z99%1Y

9L0T99%TV
SL0Z89STV
GZ0Ce0T0¥
L00ZOTTIO%
L00Z80TOY
SZTOTZTPLOY
STOTEQTOV
SZOTLSTTY
SZ0Ze010%
9L0TT9C1y

T80ZES0TY

wo3T SUTT

%07 WHIQ ¥&& 97IV¥ 0dId

HSYHT JIMOL TYANNY

6STZH HSYHET TIAMOL

6STZH# ONILSOH TIVKWA

Y8TSH# NOILVYLISENS WA

$8TS# NOILVISENS Iddd J4THHEHS
ZZT# DON/LEN/ENOHd 44 NITNAYD
996T# NOLLOE DINVd

LOS# DON/ENOHd dd HTIIANHID
69TZ# ONTJOLINOW WAVIY HAId
HSVAT JIMOL TYANNY SWE NITNAYD

FSOH/IATYA TOZZ0ZLO-D #ANT

uoT3dTIOS3q

SEDIOANI ONIANYLSLOO

NEHED vOaNHEdd

ST$88 WN NOLAYID
q¥0od AENOL LO¥

NEHID YaNTdd

ST%88 WN NOLAYID
aQUoy AANOL LO¥

NIFID VYaNIdd

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID
ayOod AENOL LO¥

NITID YANTI

ST$#88 WN NOLANYID
QI ADIOHW 8T9

NOSJWOHL ACGNYdY

STP88 WN NOLAVID
T AYIDH 819

NOSdWOHL AQNYAL

ST$88 WN NOLAYID
QI AYIDW 8T9

NOSdWOHL AINWIL

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID
INOdEZ "S5 ZO0T

X14dns AITAVEd

0¥LL8 WN NOLYA
LT XO0d "0O°d

OTT SILIINNHE

8T¥88 WN SHINIOW SEJ
L9 XO0d "0O°d

0D ENOHAHTHEL AHTIVA ¥OVE

TOT88 WN SIAOTID
anTg Sd4HEHDS TZZ

DONI ODIXHW MAN JO OddHEdId YV

sweN

50:8¢€:8

TZT0ZELTICT

TYd 087988

arvd
$10L 0€£°98S
zz02s2T

TYE 96" €€

arvdda

$I0L 96°€¢

zZZ02616

TYE 00" 8L

arvd

$101 00°8L

zz02920T

Tdd 6T TIST

arvd

$I0L 6T TIST
zzZ0zZITT

T9d  08° 2L
aIrvd

$10L 08°2ZL
ZZOZETZT

TYd 0T T6C

arvda
$SIOL 07 T6C
zz0252T

TV 9L LS
arva

$I0L 9L LS
£L%S0T

TYg  89°1¢
arvd

$I0L 89712
££5020-22

TYd SEE6TT
aIvda

SIOL SETE6TT
¢C0CTIIT

TS 6% 6LT

arva

$I10L 6% 6LT
10ZZ0ZLO-D

H#DANT

ZZ/%T/TT :®3ed



$IOL 89°0%T
89°0%T SHE8T SZ0ZESOTY JLANNELNI QAFE S8T89L00V-TH #ANI DT SWELSAS YHOMIAN LENSHHONH  $8Z89L00%-1d
ST$88 WN NOLAVID T9E 00" ¥¥

IS I¥N0OD LTE  dIYd
SIOL 00 %%

00" ¥¥ 19582 0T0Z90T0% %02 OdIg WHIA Jdd TYAOONYS HITIOH  TZ6TZT

ST#88 WN NOLAVID TYE 007 9LT

IS I800D LTIE  dIv¥d

00°9LT 19582 0T0Z90T0¥ © %08 O4I€ WHIQ ¥3Id TYAOANYS HITIOH  ZTSTI
9ZSL9 SY TOOMNITIH Tdd  00°000T
LTS X0 04  QIVd
$10L 00°000T
00°000T 15582 £%025220% SHENIL HOHMOVE (Z) PE£E€ZZEHIVA HANI HDTANES HNIL ¥ASIHH PEETTERTIVA
Z¥6EL MO NOWAND Tdd 82 €T€9
AN S AMH 8TI0T  QIv¥d
$I0L 8Z €1€9
8Z €TE9 T€58C £%025220% SEIIL (¥) LTI8TE #ANI 0lLAV OGNV FJIL NOWXND  LI8TE
8T¥88 KN SHNIOW SHA TYE £€°806¢€
a¥ VYIVIY 8%  dIvVd
$10L €£°806¢€
££°806¢€ z£58¢2 9L0252Z0%  IDHLOEd QYOY/dAI¥YM YD 000°69% ZNID OODNIWOQ  ZZOZTEO0T
L806L XI ANTIXHL TYE  PYOLIOT
9zZ% Xod ‘0°'d dIvd
SIOL ¥¥ LTOT
$%°LTOT 09582 9L026%60% SHAOD /HHALTIL/J0GYT SE00T #NI HATIIOWOLAY NOSYIEA S€00T
10188 WN SIAOTD Tdd  GL°8L0T
H ¥D 8%£l  dIvd
$IOL GSL°8LOT
SL°8LOT ¥¥E8C T0TZTIOTIO SADTANES Xd90T TZPTTT H#ANT SHIVIDOSSY 3 NIQIYH d INITID ZTPITIT
72788 WN FTITANTID TYE  SL°€0T
INYT ANNEL Ty dIvd
SIOL SL €0T

GL €01 TS¥8¢ 0TOZTOTOW NOIWYE ONILIHW OdINHAN HOVHTIN ONITSHEIN NOLANYTID Z20ZLTOT
81 T6CL LSEBT £€T02SZZ0% 000-90TE680-TOOH# E£ET960EE H#HIWILS
9L TTLT LSEBT £T025Z20% O000-8ZZT6ZOT-TO0# ££T960€E H#IWILS L%90 68TI6 VO YNIAYSYI TYg 657 84¢€8T
9L TITILT LSE8T €I0Z5ZZ0% 000-0€Z6ZO0T-TO0# €€T960€E #IWLS L$¥300T X0d O 4 aIvd
60°2€6¢ LSE8T €T0Z52Z0% 000-S09LZ0T-TO0# £€T960€€ #IWLS $LOL SS°8S€s8T
SL TTLT LSEBT £1025220% 000-TTSTHOT-TOO# €E€T960€E HINWLS 0D ¥dS IYIDNUYNIL AVTTIJIHLYD £E€T960¢EC

Z80T8 OO JUCEININL T¥E 00°ST6T

*IS ¥NB¥IEQ $99¢ aIvd
007598 9S%8C T80CZIYLOY DNIJATHS/Savd $I10L 00°ST6T
00 0SET 95798¢ T80ZTFLOY agy TOD ALFAYS/HEIL S IDDNTIEIIYD T20Z8

ST$88 WN NOLAVID I¥g 897991

avod AENOL LO¥  dIV¥d
$10L 85 93T

Junouy #0d welT JUTT uoT3dTansag swen HOANI

4 :obed SHEDIOANI ONIANV.LSLNO G0:8¢°8 2Z/%T/TT :93ed



66 €T

86°8S

LETTEY

v LE

LESEY

TT %21

vETE6T

96°S¢E

267607

69°959C

097691

ST?88 WN NOLAVID

LS NIV TTT

SI¥Yd OLOV LIIIAELS NIV
SI¥VYd OLNY Yd¥YN

CT0Z6%607%

SHHSNNE HSYM 999L€£9-L9€6 #ANI

ZZ06L XL IJVYHIVA
HLL 1SYE &T19

A1ddNs OINY NOISSIRW

arvd
S$I0L 667 €T
6£057T

TYd 86 °8S
arva

$I0L 86°8%
999LE9-L9E6

9L02S2C0Y%

YHAITIA/SESOH 8€69L-0726 HANI

ST$88 WN NOLAVID
¥6 X0d "0°d

S1¥¥d [ DIE SFTANTID DHW

9L0CSZT0%

TAN/ONILA/METE $689L-0TZ6 HANI

ST788 WN NOLAYID
¥6 X0d "0C°4

SI¥d¥d [ DIF STAOTD DW

aIrvd

$I0L LE'TEYD
8€69L-0226
TYE  ¥9°LE
arvda

$I0L P9°LE
$689L.-0226

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID
¥6 X0€ "0O°d

S1¥Yd L DI€ SHANID DKW

arvda
$IOL LETSED
6EL9L-0T26

STP88 WN NOLAVYID
¥6 X0d "0O°d

SIYYd £ DI SEINTID DWW

aivd
$I0L TT %2t
S8L9L-0TZ6

Z2069L X1 OTIDNY NYS
688¢ X0d

ANVAWOD JHIYd JTIISAVRH

e et eeT

6T0CSO0TOY

vZv88 WN HTIILIANZID
avod SELIHYNIL 61

SNINEVH NOTAIYR

arva

$10L ¥wE €61
L9ZOLTE

TYd 96 SE
arvd

$I0L 96°s¢€
TZ0Z6T6

9L0Z25220%

ZZ6v €L909 TI ODYOIHD
ZZevel X0d Od

TONI 'SIDNAac¥d NOSMYT

Tdd <C6°60%

aIivd
$10L 267 60%
LTBLEOOTEE

YLLY TOGL8 WN HA YINVS
vLLY X088 "0°d

SSOY NEHAHLS 40 HOIAJ0 MVT

TYd  69°959¢C
aIvd

$I0L 6979592
zZz020T

ST988 WN NOLAVYTIO
LS JdYaAED ¥C¢€

HONHIMYT HFTHJOLSTAA

I¥E 0% 69T
arvd

SIOL 0% 691
[4asAN

JUnowy

€

#0d

:obeg

w2l S|UTT]

SEOIOANY ODNIUNYLSLOO

votaydTaosaq

¥L89 €6909 TI ODVYOIHD
7,896 X049 "0O°d

sweN

S0:8¢€:8

#DANT

ZZ/%T/TIT *=3ed




0% LLE 75582 SZ0TIPLOY ANVYJOdd TO£E£S8TS #ANI ANVA0dYd FTOYNNIL 10€€582S
L9TT 08TP9 OW ALID SYSNYY TYg $0°02Z6
L9TT08 X0€d 0d  QIv¥d
SIOL %0°0Z6
707026 75582 SZ0ZI¥LOF ANVJOUd Z0£E€S8TS #ANT ANYJ0¥d HIDVYNNIA Z0€£5825
L9TT 08T%9 OW ALID SYSNWI T¥d 007 %02
L9TTO8 X0d Od  AIv¥d
$10L 00°%0T
00°%02 zs8s8¢ GZ0ZESOTY ANYAOId 9PTESBZS #ANI ENYJO¥d FTOUNNIA 9%TES8TS
L9TT 08TI%9 OW ALID SVYSNYA TYd 0% 9¢¢
L9TTO08 X0d Od  dI¥d
$10L 0% 9T¢
0%°92¢ 75582 $Z0ZES0TH ANYJ0Md THEEG8TS HANT ANVA0dd HTDYNNIA ZPEE582S
€ITO 99ZSL X1 SYIIYQ TYd 66 °CEC
£€IT099 X0 "O0°d  QIvd
$I0L 66°2€
66°¢C¢€ 0%€8C 600Z20TO0% TTIYD IWAH TO0S6ST6€ZLT #ANI 10430 EDIAAO0 T00S6STEETLT
£€IT0 992SL XL SYTIYA TYE 69°GST
£IT099 X0d "0°d  aIvVd
€6°¢€ 0vese 6002Z0T10% SOUL AEM TO09LPZTSETLT HANI $101L 69°SST
9L°TST 0v€82 9L0ZTHLOY SIIATOS/IANOL TO09LPTSEZLT HANI 10430 EDIAA0  TI009LFZSETLT
00°'8095§ $$58¢ L90TLSTIY FAONTANSNI SIAA LSTO00DM #ANI
00°809§ $$S8¢C L90ZESOTYH HONTANSNI SIJA LSTO00DM #ANI TOSL8 WN Hd YINYS TYd 00°0%08C
00°8095 SH58T L90T6%60% HONVINSNI SIAA LSTOO0DM #HANT 1IFT¥IS OHISITYD ¥¥¥  AIVd
00°809§ S%S82C L90ZS¥80F HONYENSNI STAA LSTO00DM H#ANT $IO0L 00°0%082
00° 8098 52374 L90ZTPLOY HSONTINSNT SIdA LSTO0O0DM #ANT ALTHOHIAVY FONYAQSNI ALNNOD MWN LSTO00DM
T0SL8 WN Hd YINYS T¥d  00°SLZ
1S OHIISITYD ¥bvy  QIVd
$IO0L 00°SLT
00°5LT $558¢ 0T10ZZ0TO0% 8TZT-2SZT-2Z0ZTT~ECOTITHANT SEIINNOD ODIXHW MEN  2Z0ZTT-€Z0ZOT
T0GL8 WN Fd YINVS T¥d 00°SLZ
1S OZLSITYD ¥%¥  AIVd
. $10L 00°SLZ
00°5LZ $5S8C 0T0ZZOTOY AQNVIE 6LTTETCTZZOZTTEZ0ZDT HANI SHIINNOD ODIXHW MIAN  ZZOZTII
T06L8 WN ZJ YINVS TYE 007 00T
1S OFISITYD ¥¥P  AIVd
$IOL 00°00T
00°00T $558¢ 0T0ZH0TO% NIHYD € 60TTEFPTTZCOCTTIZZOIIIHANT SHIINNOD ODIXIW MEN  CTO0ZIIT
TOSL8 WN HA YINYS Tvd  00°002
1S OHISITYD ¥Py  AIYd
$I10L 007002
00°00¢ 89582 0T0ZZOTO% XONVIE LLOT60TTZZ0Z0TZZOdIE #ANI SEIINAOD ODIXIW MAN  TZ0ZLZOT
6508 L6ZTIZ QN TIOWILIVE TYd 007 0§%
6G08¢€ X0€ "0°d  QIVd
SENd ALNNOD $10L 007 0S%
00°058% LSS8T €L0CTIOTOY €2/T€/TT-€2/T/T 9%09TCZ0T #ANI SEIINONOD A0 ~J0SSY TYNOIIYN  9%09T2Z0T
JUnouYy #0d4 wa3I sutd GOﬂuQHHUWOQ sueN #UNVZH
4 :obeg SHDIOANI ONIANYISINO S0:8€:8 Z2Z/%T/TT :@3ed



0%LL8 WN NOIVY

IATILS TYOD %0Z  dIVd
$I0L Z9°0L%
Z9°0LY $TS8T ZI0ZIPLOY 02-¥ EONWHD TIO ST92T HANI "ONI EDIAMHS QIIIL S.A¥E  ST92CT
STP88 WN NOLXYTID e P ¥
£ ¥EAMYTEd ~ gIVd
$I0L vI' ¥
AR~ z9¢£82 9L025220% SHENEILSYA €Z€20TD #ANT FUYMMIYH SOVYSI M"Y £2£20ZD
STIP88 WN NOLAYTD Tdg 897 0¢€
0 ¥EMYEd  dIYd
$I0L 89°0¢€
89°0¢€ z9¢€8 ZT0ZE0TOP LLES LON/NYD TISHIA ZTE6T0TD #HANI TIYMAEYH SOYYSI "M°¥ Z€6TO0TD
0090 TOT6T ¥d VIHATEAVTITHA e PR ZeT
009L€ X0d "O°d  dIv¥d
$10L ¥¥ TET
PP CET 10782 9L026L92%  HISIOOL/XIW SUYW 82980987 HANI NOTIVIOdW0oD TIIND  8Z980%8C
0090 TOT6T ¥d YIHATAQYTIIHA T9d 217 9¢€T
009L€ X0 "0°d (IVd
$I0L ZT°9€T
ZT 9€T T0¥82 9L0Z%50THy  HISIOOL/XIW SEYW Z9¥80%8Z HANI NOIIVIOd¥0D TIIND  Z9%80%8¢C
0090 TOT6T ¥d YIHATHAYIIHA 19 T2 60T
009L€ X0d "0°d  ATIYd
$10L TZ 60T
IZ°60T 10%82 9L025L9Z% SINIW/TIOY HISIOOL ££9€0%8Z HANI NOIIVIOA¥OD TIIND  £€9€098¢
0090 TOT6T ¥d VIHJTHAYVITHA Ivd 987 8§
009LE XO€ "O°d  QIv¥d
$I101 98°8S
98° 85 10¥82 9,0Z%S0THy  SINIW QIXIW SUYW 9EETTH8T HANI NOIIWIOZIOD TIIND  9€€£2ZT¥8Z
0090 TOT6T ¥d VIHATIAYITHA Tvd 2L TL
009L€ X0€ "0°d dIv¥d
$I0L TLCTIL
ZL TL 10982 9L02SL9Z% AIHSYAH/D0HD INIW 98TS0%8Z HANI NOIIVIOJMOD TIIND 9825098
0090 TOT6T ¥d YIHATHEAYIIHA Tvd 2T 99
009L€ X0g "0°d  AI¥d
$101L 2Z° 99
zZ°99 10%8¢C 9L0T5L92% XIW SUVW/JND ASTTI SPSTTP8C HANI NOIIVNO4¥0D TIIND  SHSZTIP8T
0090 TOI6T ¥d YIHATIQYIIHA T9g €1°0TT
009L€ X0d "0°d  aIvd
$I0L €T°0TT
€T°0TT 10%82 9L0ZHSO0TY ISIOOL/RIIYL/XIDEM 9PSE€0P8T HANI NOIIWHOJ¥OD TIIND  9¥S€0$8<
88TT ZP6EL MO NOWAND TYd £V LY
88TT X0g "0°d dIV¥d
$I0L €9 LY
£V LY 8¥€8C SZ0ZESOTY INOHd QAT £Z096T #IODY IDId  2Z0TTITIT
L9TT 08TP9 OW ALID SYSNVYA TYE 0% LLE
L9TTO8 X0€ Od  (IVd
$I0L 0% LLE
JUnowyy #04 wa3I SuTrI uwoT3dTInsaa SweN #DOANI
s :ebeq SHDIOANI SNIANYISLAO 50:8€:8 2z/%T/T1 :@3eq




2206L XI LIVHEIVA TYE L8 88ST
$IZT X094 "0°4d aIivd
SI10L L8 88ST

L8 88ST £¥582 9,02S%80% HOVIATIW/CQHET OL IAVIDAN 8878 H#ANI DIVIDATE YIAJS 888
18°69 8G€8C SZ0OZEOTO¥ NOIIYISENS JJTIIHS
TE°SHT 85€£8Z SZ0Z6%60%  TTEM HITJ QAVH/SINY 87¥PT #ANI
98° 59 85€82 SZ0Z6¥60% TTIM FNId AYISIWY 8PPPT HANT
zz°28 85€£82 SZ0ZESOTH NOIIVIS NIVW 8%%%T #ANI
0Z°0L 85£82 §Z0ZE€S0TH HSNOH JINEEIID £ A0 S 8¥¥PT HANI
I8 112 85€8¢ SZ0Z6V60% IJHA F¥Id JOHS SY 8F¥¥T HANT
9L°96 8SE£8C SZ0ZS¥80% HSNOH H¥IA SYWOHL 8%%PT #ANI
Z1°9S 85€82 §Z0ZS¥80% HSNOH ANWAZQOd ¥ A0 N 8F%HT #ANI
12 L% 85€£82C 52025807 HSNOH HAIJ NYAIS 8¥#rT HANT
21 IL 85€8¢C SZ0ZSV80% TIEM TOOHDS 8%¥¥T HANI
€€ LY 85£8C GZ0ZESOTH ASNOH H¥IJd VOENHS 8FFFT #HANI
86°6L 85€£82 SZOZLSITY g4 FTIIANTED 8%¥¥T HANI ST#88 WN NOILAYID TYd €47 €6ST
$9°LL 85€£82Z SZOZESOTY NOIIVIS NOINTY 8%¥¥T #HANI 69¢ X0d  QIvVd
Z¥°9S 85€82 SZOZI¥LOY SWE NITNAYD 8¥%¥%%T #ANI $I0L €L €6ST
$6°S6 85€82 SZOZTPLOF d¥D HESNOH TIId 8¥FPT HANI DIYIDETH NJZLSAMHILAOS  8%¥%¥T
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID TYd 76" €8
1S NIODNIT T  QIvd
$101 Z6°€8
zZ6° €8 £¥€82 TT0Z80T0% HONYHD TIO $00G #ANI ADIAMES ANY TIILL W-XIS  $00S
ST%#88 WN NOLAYID TYd ST IEL
ANV I0TdEEI ST aIvd
$I0L ST IEL
ST TIEL LS¥%8C TOTZSLITY ISITYIDEAS NOIINIATIL YNEOT NO¥VHS  2Z0ZO0T
9€%8 60TT6 VYO ¥YNAQYSYL TYE 00 €SET
9€¥8 XO0g Od  QIvd
$I0L 00 €S€T
00" €SET £Z¥82 LOETLLYTY ONTIOLINOW S35 859007 #ANI SEDIANIS VEANZIIO TANIINZS 859002
LL°99T 15€82 £T0Z80TO¥% HSYHT JATIHHS OETSE60£06 #ANI 992ZSL XI SYITYQ Tvg 79 TES
88792 15€8¢C £T0ZL0TO0F HSYET IMANSYIIL OETSE60E06 HANT Z¥£099 X0€ "O°d  dIYd
ST 6¥%T 15€82C £€T02Z0T0¥ HSYIT NINGY OETSE60£06 HANT $10L Z9°TES
z8°88T 15€£82 £T0Z¥0TO¥% FSYAT MEITD 0ETSE60£06 HANI DNI ‘¥SQ HODI¥  OE€ISE60€06
99ZSL XI SYTIVA TYd 9T 6LT
Z¥E099 X0 "O°d  QIvVd
£€° 1% 15€82 60026L66%  INQOD VOSSHESSY 08T9E60€06 HANI $I0L 9T 6LT
€8 LET 15€82 £T0Z6L66F ISYET 08T9€60€06 HANI DNI ‘¥SN HODIM  08T9€60€£06
99ZSL X1 SYITIVA TYE 92 VLT
6% 6L 15£82 60024SL9Z% INNOD HONYITAWOD Tz88¥%¥8590S5 #ANT Z¥€099 XOE "O°d  dIVd
zz° v TS€82C 6002ZL0TO0% INNOD ¥HANSYMUL TZ88¥8S90S HANT $I0L 9T ¥LT
S5°0L T5€£82 600Z80T0% INNOD AATUTHS TZ88Y8590S HANI ONI ‘¥SQ HODI¥  1Z88%8590S
99ZSL X1 SYTTIYAd TYd  LT°LOT
Z¥E099 X0 "O°d  dIvd
$I0L LT LOT
LT LOT 15€82 600Z%0T0¥ INNOD MMIATD €EL8¥8G90S HANT ONI ‘¥SQ HODI¥  £EL8%8S590S
Junoury #0d4 wall S[UT] ﬁOHUQHHUW&Q IWeN #U?ZH
9 :abeg SHOIOANI SNIANYLSLNO S0:8€:8  2Z/¥I/TIT :°3eq



ZZ06L XiI ILYVHTNA Ve CSTLL
HINOS L8 AMH aivd
6T8 X0d "O°d $I0L TS LL

zZs LL 9%582 9L0Z6¥%60% SWOOMEHSNA LS6Z0TT #ANI ATddNS QELINO  LS620CT
ST¥88 WN NOILAYID TvE TS 60LT
98¥% X0g "0°d QIv¥d
SIOL TS 60LT
IS 60LT 68€8C $0TZS0TO0Y VAS/ONE Q¥ IDFIH NED U6E€SHy #ANI JIATAT AINACD NOINN  d6€SHY
ST$88 KWN NOLAVTID Tdd 60°€ST

98% X0d "0°d QIvd
$I0L 60°€ST

607 €ST 68€8¢C 200ZS0T0%F ONILOA DHIH NHD TTZOTZ CEESHP #HANI WEAYAT ALNNOD NOIND  JEESHY
£88T0 YW NOIDNIWIIM 7d 8V €L
009 X0g o4  dIvd
$101L 8% €L
8% €L 6298T 9Y0ZEOTOD EDINGES SNd Z688T00S8T HANT ISYIAINA  T688T0068Z
L88T0 YW NOIONIWIIM I9E 8% €L
009 X0d Od  QIvd
$I0L 8% €L
8y €L 62v8¢2 9%0ZEOTOY HDIANES DAY 96E£TZ0058Z HANT ISITAIND  96€2200582
TLP0 TE£088 WN DNIWAA TYd L0 6L8E
€% LTET ZS€8T £T0ZLOTOY ONIMAOMIEN 06:SP:0LLILOT HANT gIvd
€p LTET zs€8¢ £€T0Z90TOY ONINIOMLAN 0G:G¥:0LLILOT #ANT TLY MAMYEQ "O°d  SIOL L0 6L8E
1Z°%92T zs€£8¢2 £T0ZZOTO% ONTMOMIEN 05:S%:0LLILOT #ANT DIAQYIML  ZZOZTEOT
£L806L XI ANIIXZL TYd 00 08T
ggz X0d "0'd  dIvd
$LOL 00°08T
00°08T €578 9L0ZLSTIY JHLHOLDO ¥OA JHLSIWNA T6LS6 HANI DTT SNITOADEN FIVIS-IVL  T6LS6
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID T9d  TZ°026TT
INANISHEED I  dIvd
$I0L TZ 02611
12°0T6TIT £5€82C ZITIZTI800S WAOD INIOL ¥HIOLDO NOLAYID 0 NMOL  2Z0Z0T
0¥ 8% £5€8¢C SZ0ZEOTOF IIIYM ddTd 10
S0°T9L £S€8C SZOZEOTO0P  EOVEIYD/JAMAS/JEIYM HSNOHIYNOD
65°9LT £5€82 SZ0ZEOTOV FTOVRAYD /TAMIS /THIYM NTHAY STP88 WN NOLAYID TYd SO0 OLET
1v-¢8 £5€£8¢C $Z0ZE0TO® FOVFAYD/JAMES XANNY INNISEHD T  QIvd
7% STIT £5€8¢2 §20Z€6509 HOVEEYD /AAMES /FIYM A4THFHS $IO0L SO0 OLET
91798 £5€8¢C §Z025220% HOUTIYD/IAIYM IdId aQYod NOLAWID J0 NMOL  2Z0ZLZOT
STP88 WN NOLIVYTID IYd  £5°08LZ
INNISEHD T  dIvd
$I0L €5°08LZ
£5°08LZ SZH8T 9,02S220% "T¥D 000 8LV dWIM MING ZZHTOT HANI NOLAVTID A0 NMOL  ZT¥%Z0T
STP88 WN NOLAYID TYE  00°L98
ayod SAVW LT  dIvd
ONITOO0D 3 $10L 00°L98
00°L98 0LE8Z £Z0ZE0TOY WOIYI/JOSNAS TIOD/HOSNIS VYOOAILAO ONIIVEH ONIFWNId SITIYD WIL  ZZOZIIT
JUnoury #0d ws31 9UTT uotadraosag aweN #DOANT
L :obeg SADIOANI SHNIANYLISLNO S0:8€°8 ZZ/%T/TT :@3ed



237662081 2 xDNIDTIOANT TYLOLx % x

€7 62T 6LE8T 0T0ZZOTO¥ EOYNYN AINNOD £LLLESHS H#ANT
0T 8§ 6LE8BZ TIO0ZEOTO® FONYNAINIVIN ELLLESHS HANI
9L 0%zZE 6LEBZ IT0Z80TO¥ JATYEHS €LLLEBYS HANT
96°0E%0C 6LE8T $¥0Z5220% 1ddd a¥0d €LLLESYS #ANTI
99° %12 6LE8C 1T0Z6L66% JYOSSHASSY £LLLESTS HANI €629 L6T09 'TI WYTJLS TOAYD TV LY 182Z%2
T%°LOT 6LE8T O0TOZOTTOP NHDUYNYNW ADNIOUAWH €LLLESDS HANT €679 X049 Od  dIvVd
¥% 0% 6LEBT 9L0Z2921% SWE NITNAVYD E£LLLESYS #ANI $IOL L% 18Z¥T
TL 6S 6LE8T 9L0Z5%80% ad NYQES €LLLEB?8 HANI MNVE XdIM  €LLLESBDS
0%LLS WN NOIVY TYd 00 06S0€
GAY QIOJATNHEH ISYE ¥%%¥  dIVd
$I0L 00°06S0€E
00°06S0€ LO¥8Z LOEZLLYZY ¥ENOSI¥NA J0 SNISNOH 2207 ¥HLIOIDO AXINED NOIINZILAA OQYNOUTIYW TIDIA  ZZOZTE0T
€£S0€ VD VDENOTHYA TYd  8Z°ZL6T
TIVIL VOILDIISOUE 065  dIVd
$I0L 87 CTL6T
8Z°ZL6T 6£582 LOEZLLYZY SHTVIOW IL/NOILIAVALXE v0TE #ANI DT ‘SEDIANES NEAVM #ENTd SN FOIE
Junowy #0d we3I dUTT uotadransag SweN  #DANI

8 :obeg SHOIOANI ONIANVLSILOO $0:8£°8 2Z/¥T/TIT 93eq



